
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

McHenry Public Library District 

Board of Library Trustees Regular Meeting 

 

Tuesday November 15, 2016  

7:00 p.m. 

2nd Floor Board Room 

 

 

Agenda 
 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER – Kathy Beaderstadt, President 

 

II. ROLL CALL – Monica Leccese, Secretary 

 

III.      PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

IV.      CORRECTIONS OR ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 

 

V.      PUBLIC COMMENT AND RECOGNITION OF VISISTORS 

 

VI.      CONSENT AGENDA FOR THIS MEETING (Action) 

SECRETARY'S REPORT – Monica Leccese, Secretary 

Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting, October 18, 2016 
         

TREASURER'S REPORT – Charles Reilly, Treasurer 

Monthly Financial Statements and Interim Check Report through  

October 31, 2016 and Bill Reports for Oct/Nov 2016 

Additional Bills (Distributed night of meeting) 

Petty Cash and Credit Card Reports 

 

VII. COMMUNICATIONS 
 

 

VIII. LIBRARIAN'S REPORT 

 

 

McHenry Public Library District 
809 North Front Street 

McHenry, Illinois 60050 
Phone:  815.385.0036 

www.mchenrylibrary.org 
 

 



IX. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
To discuss the appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, performance or 

dismissal of specific employees of the public body in compliance with the Open Meetings 

Act 5 ILCS 120/2 section 2(c)(1) and review and release of the October 18, 2016  Executive 

Session Minutes. 

 

X. OLD BUSINESS 
1.   RFID project – discuss scheduling visits to other area libraries 

2.   Board self-evaluation process - ongoing 

 

XI. NEW BUSINESS 
1. Approval and release of the Oct. 18, 2016 Executive Session Minutes. (Action) 

2. Approval of new travel/meetings policy to include PA 99-0604. (Action)  

3. Approval of Resolution 2016/2017-6  for travel to satisfy PA 99-0604 requirement 

(Action) 

4. Discussion and approval of the new Bereavement Leave policy (incorporates new IL 

Child Bereavement Act of 2016)  (Action) 

5. Approval of FY 2015-2016 Annual Audit (Action) 

6. Approval of FY 2015-2016 Receipts and Disbursements (Action) 

  

XII. ANY AND ALL OTHER BUSINESS THAT MAY PROPERLY 

COME BEFORE THE BOARD 

 

XIII. ADJOURNMENT 
 

 
 

*Any person with a physical disability may contact the MPLD (815-385-0036) within 4 

hours of any meeting date to request special access to any board meeting.  The MPLD will 

make all board meetings accessible to people with physical disabilities under the current 

ADA requirements. 



1 

 

MINUTES 

MCHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT 

BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES  

PUBLIC HEARING AND REGULAR MEETING 

 
 

 

 

Date:       October 18, 2016 

Time:       7:00 P.M. 

Location:  Library Board Meeting Room  

 

Members Present:  Kathy Beaderstadt, Margaret Carey, Delphine Grala, Monica Leccese, Charles 

Reilly, and Bradley Schubert  

 

Members Absent: Jill Stone   

 

Also Present:   James Scholtz, Executive Director 

  Bill Edminster, Assistant Director 

 Debbie Gunness, Business Manager 

 

I. Call to Order: 

President Beaderstadt called the meeting to order at 7:08 p.m. 

 

II. Roll Call: 

Roll was called and a quorum was established.  See # 1 on attached sheet. 

 

III. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

IV. Corrections or Additions to the Agenda 

New Business – New Resolution to Comply with Government Travel Expense Control Act 

 New Business – Discussion of Halloween, Thanksgiving and Christmas dinner parties for the 

Board 

 

V. Public Comment and Recognition of Visitors 

None 

 

VI. Consent Agenda for this meeting 

Secretary's Report – Monica Leccese, Secretary 

Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting, September 20, 2016  

Treasurer’s Report – Charles Reilly, Treasurer 

Monthly Financial Statements and Interim Check Report through September 30, 2016 and Bill 

Reports for September/October 2016 

Additional Bills (Distributed night of meeting) 

Petty Cash and Credit Card Reports 

The Board reviewed the regular board minutes, financial statements and bills. 

Grala moved and Schubert seconded a motion to approve the minutes of the regular meeting for 

September 20, 2016, the monthly financial statements for the fiscal year through September 30, 

2016, the Bill Reports for September/October 2016, and payment of the bills.  Motion passed 6-0.  

See # 2 on attached sheet.     



2 

 

 

  

VII. Communications 

None 

 

VIII. Librarian's Report 

 Edminster reported on the library’s progress with the Career Online High School program.  

He also discussed the feature article in the Northwest Herald about the program 

 Scholtz reported that he had no progress to report on the Chautauqua idea, though he had 

received a return phone call from his contact in North Dakota. 

 The McHenry County Librarians group will meet here on Friday, October 28th.  Former 

Woodstock Library Director, Maggie Fields Crane, will be updating the group on a project to 

digitize local historic newspapers.  This will provide a backup or alternative to the newspaper 

access provided by NewsBank, a paid service. 

 Scholtz had hoped to show the new and updated solar panels to the McHenry County 

Librarians, but there has been a delay in getting a city permit.   

 Scholtz will talk with directors from libraries with RFID security while they are here for the 

meeting to arrange dates for trustees to visit to see how RFID works.  Edminster will be at 

Des Plaines Public Library that day attending the RAILS Assistant Directors networking 

group. 

 The library audit was not yet available at the time of the meeting. Scholtz reported that the 

auditors recommend that the library give W-9 forms to the businesses it deals with. 

 Rebecca Malinowski has been appointed to run the CCS computer consortium.  She has been 

in charge of training for CCS and was acting head of CCS during the job search. 

 CCS’s Request for Proposals for a new Integrated Library System (ILS) will be sent out and a 

decision on a vendor is expected early in 2017. 

 Scholtz commended Kathy Milfajt, the new Head of Technical Services, for representing the 

library at the CCS Governing Board meeting when he and Edminster were both unable to 

attend. 

 The cork floor in the Main Room of the library needs to be fixed because the surface 

underneath was not properly prepared when the flooring was put in.  Scholtz and Harding 

decided to make the repairs in-house rather than bringing in an outside company because it 

would not require closing the library and the work would be done better.  The work will be 

done in small areas at a time during November and December primarily before the library is 

open. 

 Administration is looking at health insurance.  We will stay with the same insurance broker, 

but are looking at several options for insurance providers.  We already know that our current 

provider will be raising rates and that other providers offer lower rates, but we are considering 

various scenarios that might improve our rates even more.  We are also planning to investigate 

options to return our annual renewal date to January 1 rather than December 1, something that 

has occurred in the recent past. 

 Scholtz is investigating getting Crisis Intervention Training (CIT) for some staff.  Formal CIT 

is only given to law enforcement and first responders, but the Health Department offers a 

version that would be appropriate for our staff.  The training helps when dealing with patrons 

with mental health problems. 

 Scholtz reported that staff had expressed interest in stocking Narcan in the library to deal with 

opiate overdoses but that after investigating use in libraries, he felt that there was too much 

risk of misdiagnosis.   We chose not to ask staff to diagnose and treat overdoses since EMT 

professionals arrive at our location very quickly. 

 



3 

 

 

 Scholtz presented a draft of a resolution on Board travel expenses.  Instructions for and 

interpretations of the legislation, which sets limits on the spending and use of government 

money on travel expenses, are still being developed, so the Board will not be required to pass 

the resolution until the January meeting. 

 Scholtz and the IT Department are in conversations with the company In Sync Systems of 

Crystal Lake to upgrade and maintain our phone system. 

 The Per Capita Grant application is now available and Edminster will be working on it.  The 

Board will need to approve it at its December meeting. 

 Edminster told the Board about the October 14, 2016 in-service where the speaker talked to 

the staff about serving LGBTQ (Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender, and Queer (and/or 

questioning) individuals/identities)) patrons. 

 

IX. Executive Session 

To discuss the appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, performance or dismissal of 

specific employees of the public body in compliance with the Open Meetings Act 5 ILCS 120/2 

section 2(c)(1) and review and release of the September 20, 2016 executive session minutes. 

  

Carey moved and Reilly seconded a motion to go into executive session at 7:57 p.m. to discuss 

the appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, performance or dismissal of specific 

employees of the public body in compliance with the Open Meetings Act 5 ILCS 120/2 section 

2(c)(1) and review and release of the September 20, 2016 executive session minutes.    Motion 

passed 6-0.  See # 3 on attached sheet.      

 

Carey moved and Reilly seconded a motion to come out of executive session at 8:30 p.m.  Motion 

passed 6-0.  See # 4 on attached sheet.      

 

No action was taken. 

 

X. Old Business 

1. RFID Project – Discuss scheduling visits to other area libraries  

2. Board self-evaluation process - Ongoing 

 

XI. New Business 

1. Approval and release of the September 20, 2016 Executive Session Minutes. 

The Board reviewed the executive session minutes in Executive Session.   

Schubert moved and Reilly seconded a motion to approve and release of the 

September 20, 2016 Executive Session Minutes.  Motion passed 6-0.  See # 5 on 

attached sheet. 

 

2. Approval of the Revised Budget and Appropriation Ordinance 2016/2017-3  

Leccese moved and Schubert seconded a motion to approve the Revised Combined 

Annual Budget and Appropriation Ordinance 2016/2017-3 for the McHenry Public 

Library District for the FY beginning July 1, 2016 and ending June 30, 2017.   

Motion passed 6-0.  See # 6 on attached sheet.   

 

3. Approval of the Levy and Assessment of Taxes Ordinance No. 2016/2017-4  

Leccese moved and Grala seconded a motion to approve the Levy and Assessment of Taxes 

Ordinance 2016/2017-4 for the McHenry Public Library District for the Fiscal Year beginning 

July 1, 2016 and ending June 30, 2017.  Motion passed 6-0.  See # 7 on attached sheet.   

 



4 

 

4. Review Audit Draft to be handed out the night of the meeting.  

No action was taken because the Audit Draft was not available for the board meeting. 

 

5. New Resolution to Comply with Government Travel Expense Control Act 

Scholtz distributed a sample copy of a Resolution to Comply with the Government Travel 

Expense Control Act.  He informed the Board that he will be discussing the travel expense 

resolution with other McHenry County directors at their October 28th meeting.  Scholtz will 

then present the travel expense resolution at the November board meeting. 

 

6. Discussion of Halloween, Thanksgiving and Christmas dinner parties for the Board 

The board discussed a suggestion from a fellow board member that the board have holiday 

dinners before their meetings in October, November and December. While the board 

encourages and appreciates new ideas and suggestions, members felt having such social 

events was not in line with the board's purpose and responsibility to conduct and discuss 

library business at these meetings. In addition, as volunteer public servants, the board felt such 

social events were not appropriate in a library board meeting setting. 

 

XII. Any and All Other Business Which May Properly Come Before the Board 

None 

 

XIII. Adjournment 

Carey moved Schubert seconded a motion to adjourn the meeting at 8:56 p.m.   

Motion passed 6-0.   See # 8 on attached sheet. 

 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

 

       

Monica Leccese, Secretary 

 

 

Text for Motion Sheet 

1. Roll Call at 7:08 p.m. 

2. Motion to approve the minutes of the regular meeting for September 20, 2016, the monthly financial 

statements for the fiscal year through September 30, 2016, the Bill Reports for September/October 2016, 

and payment of the bills.   

3. Motion to go into executive session at 7:57 p.m. to discuss the appointment, employment, compensation, 

discipline, performance or dismissal of specific employees of the public body in compliance with the Open 

Meetings Act 5 ILCS 120/2 section 2(c)(1) and review and release of the September 20, 2016 executive 

session minutes.   

4. Motion to come out of executive session at 8:30 p.m.     

5. Motion to approve and release of the September 20, 2016 Executive Session Minutes. 

6. Motion to approve the Revised Combined Annual Budget and Appropriation Ordinance 2016/2017-3 for 

the McHenry Public Library District for the FY beginning July 1, 2016 and ending June 30, 2017.   

7. Motion to approve the Levy and Assessment of Taxes Ordinance 2016/2017-4 for the McHenry Public 

Library District for the Fiscal Year beginning July 1, 2016 and ending June 30, 2017.   

8. Motion to adjourn the meeting at 8:56 p.m.   
 



5 

 

DATE:  October 18, 2016 

Called to Order: 7:08 p.m. 

Kathy 

Beaderstadt  

Margaret 

Carey 

Delphine 

Grala 

Monica 

Leccese 

Charles 

Reilly 

Bradley 

Schubert 

Jill 

Stone 

1. Roll call at 7:08 p.m. P P P  P P P  NP 

2.  Motion to approve the 

minutes of the regular meeting 

for September 20, 2016, the 

monthly financial statements 

for the fiscal year through 

September 30, 2016, the Bill 

Reports for 

September/October 2016, and 

payment of the bills.   

Y Y (M)Y Y Y (S)Y NP 

3. Motion to go into executive 

session at 7:57 p.m. to discuss 

the appointment, employment, 

compensation, discipline, 

performance or dismissal of 

specific employees of the 

public body in compliance 

with the Open Meetings Act 5 

ILCS 120/2 section 2(c)(1) and 

review and release of the 

September 20, 2016 executive 

session minutes.   

Y (M)Y Y Y (S)Y Y NP 

4. Motion to come out of 

executive session at 8:30 p.m.   
Y (M)Y Y Y (S)Y Y NP 

5.  Motion to approve and 

release of the September 20, 

2016 Executive Session 

Minutes. 

Y Y Y Y (S)Y (M)Y NP 

6. Motion to approve the 

Revised Combined Annual 

Budget and Appropriation 

Ordinance 2016/2017-3 for the 

McHenry Public Library 

District for the FY beginning 

July 1, 2016 and ending June 

30, 2017.   

Y Y Y (M)Y Y  (S)Y NP 

7. Motion to approve the Levy 

and Assessment of Taxes 

Ordinance 2016/2017-4 for the 

McHenry Public Library 

District for the Fiscal Year 

beginning July 1, 2016 and 

ending June 30, 2017.   

Y Y (S)Y (M)Y Y Y NP 

8. Motion to adjourn the 

meeting at 8:56 p.m.   
Y (M)Y Y Y Y (S)Y NP 

 
A=Abstain, M=Motion, N=No, NP=Not Present, P=Present, S=Second, Y=Yes 



MCHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT

COMPILED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

October 31, 2016



McHenry Public Library District 6:37 PM

Balance Sheet 11/10/2016

As of October 31, 2016 Cash Basis

Oct 31, 16

ASSETS

Current Assets

Checking/Savings

1060 · First Midwest Bank-Money Market

1060100 · MM - General - First Midwest 1,369,371.25

1060200 · MM - Spec Reserve-First Midwest 1,748,047.39

1060300 · MM - Grant & Gift-First Midwest 461,823.92

Total 1060 · First Midwest Bank-Money Market 3,579,242.56

1070100 · HSA/Building - First Midwest 367,411.21

1615100 · General Account - First Midwest 20,696.97

1625100 · Payroll Account - First Midwest 112,400.73

1635100 · Imprest Account - First Midwest 4,799.19

1045100 · PROPAY 6,148.92

1150100 · FirstMerit-MoneyMarket- 4/22/11 200,147.76

Total Checking/Savings 4,290,847.34

Other Current Assets

1005100 · Petty Cash 800.00

Total Other Current Assets 800.00

Total Current Assets 4,291,647.34

TOTAL ASSETS 4,291,647.34

LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Equity

3010100 · Fund Balance - General 1,607,104.80

3010200 · Fund Balance - Special Reserve 1,744,332.86

3010300 · Fund Balance - Grants & Gifts 465,934.67

Net Income 474,275.01

Total Equity 4,291,647.34

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 4,291,647.34

 Page 2 of 13



McHenry Public Library District 6:40 PM

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures 11/10/2016

October 2016 Cash Basis

Oct 16

Income

6010100 · Property Taxes 44,131.47

6030100 · Interest Income - General 76.66

6030200 · Interest Income - Spec Reserve 57.68

6030300 · Interest Income - Grant & Gifts 15.25

6035100 · Dividends 100.04

6040100 · Nonresident & Enhanced Cards 90.00

6050100 · Fines 4,182.56

6055100 · Collection Fees 40.00

6060100 · Photocopier & Fax Income 1,142.68

6070300 · General Fund Gifts 10.22

6105100 · Staff Cobra/Insurance Payments 1,389.94

6110100 · Program Fees/Misc Fees 2,160.00

6120100 · Meeting Room Fees 30.00

6130100 · Misc Income - General 513.13

6150100 · Lost & Damged Materials 329.56

6200100 · Over/Short (0.24)

Total Income 54,268.95

Gross Profit 54,268.95

Expense

8010100 · Adult Books 10,414.64

8020100 · Youth Books 2,908.44

8028100 · Administrative Resources (GA) 29.99

8030100 · Magazines & Newspapers 207.31

8050100 · Adult AV Materials 4,638.41

8060100 · Youth AV Materials 1,164.97

8080100 · Video Games 934.83

8090100 · eBook & eMagazine Services 13,018.89

8095100 · Electonic Subscriptions 8,205.00

8120100 · Library Supplies 42.62

8130100 · Tech Services Supplies 875.41

8140100 · Adult Programs & Supplies 1,765.30

8150100 · Youth Programs & Supplies 1,642.79

8215100 · Collection Agency Fees 98.45

8245100 · Comp/OfcEqp/CopierRepairs/Contr 105.00

8310100 · CCS & SIRSI Expenses 5,902.00

8320100 · Network Expenses 1,736.28

8330100 · OCLC Services (cataloging) 806.00

8410100 · Payroll Exp, Acctg & Audit Serv 5,637.29

8510100 · Printing 5,412.76

8540100 · Postage 560.59

8550100 · Public Relations/Promotions 626.60

8610100 · Electricity 2,509.29

8630100 · Telephone 470.57

8635100 · T-1 & other Telecommunications 838.80

8640100 · Water & Sewer 1,396.01

8740100 · Building & Grounds 8,530.27

8760100 · Hospitality 545.01

8770100 · Interlibrary Loan Fees & Losses 12.99

 Page 3 of 13



Oct 16

8800311 · Adult Materials - PER CAPITA 414.08

8910100 · Salaries 127,899.05

8920100 · FICA/Medicare 9,689.56

8930100 · IMRF 14,170.46

8940100 · Health & Life Insurance 25,987.33

8960100 · Memberships & Dues 21.98

8970100 · Meetings & Travel 1,328.42

9060100 · Library Furnishings 419.99

Total Expense 260,967.38

Net Income (206,698.43)

 Page 4 of 13



McHenry Public Library District 6:41 PM

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures by Class 11/10/2016

July through October 2016 Cash Basis
100 General 

Fund

200 Special 

Reserve Fund

300 Grant and 

Gift Fund TOTAL

Income

6010100 · Property Taxes 1,509,092.02 0.00 0.00 1,509,092.02

6020200 · Developer Fees 0.00 3,470.00 0.00 3,470.00

6030100 · Interest Income - General 222.19 0.00 0.00 222.19

6030200 · Interest Income - Spec Reserve 0.00 244.53 0.00 244.53

6030300 · Interest Income - Grant & Gifts 0.00 0.00 63.87 63.87

6035100 · Dividends 195.20 0.00 0.00 195.20

6040100 · Nonresident & Enhanced Cards 135.00 0.00 0.00 135.00

6050100 · Fines 14,229.02 0.00 0.00 14,229.02

6055100 · Collection Fees 110.00 0.00 0.00 110.00

6060100 · Photocopier & Fax Income 4,751.86 0.00 0.00 4,751.86

6070300 · General Fund Gifts 0.00 0.00 50.96 50.96

6105100 · Staff Cobra/Insurance Payments 4,882.86 0.00 0.00 4,882.86

6110100 · Program Fees/Misc Fees 2,160.00 0.00 0.00 2,160.00

6120100 · Meeting Room Fees 175.00 0.00 0.00 175.00

6130100 · Misc Income - General 923.03 0.00 0.00 923.03

6150100 · Lost & Damged Materials 1,249.92 0.00 0.00 1,249.92

6200100 · Over/Short (4.00) 0.00 0.00 (4.00)

Total Income 1,538,122.10 3,714.53 114.83 1,541,951.46

Gross Profit 1,538,122.10 3,714.53 114.83 1,541,951.46

Expense

8010100 · Adult Books 34,674.57 0.00 0.00 34,674.57

8020100 · Youth Books 12,139.09 0.00 0.00 12,139.09

8025100 · Professional Resources 4,201.39 0.00 0.00 4,201.39

8028100 · Administrative Resources (GA) 289.97 0.00 0.00 289.97

8030100 · Magazines & Newspapers 12,257.56 0.00 0.00 12,257.56

8040300 · Operating Fund Gifts 0.00 0.00 3,737.28 3,737.28

8050100 · Adult AV Materials 17,008.89 0.00 0.00 17,008.89

8060100 · Youth AV Materials 3,379.11 0.00 0.00 3,379.11

8080100 · Video Games 2,664.85 0.00 0.00 2,664.85

8090100 · eBook & eMagazine Services 15,697.16 0.00 0.00 15,697.16

8095100 · Electonic Subscriptions 17,371.68 0.00 0.00 17,371.68

8110100 · Bank Service Charges 0.81 0.00 0.00 0.81

8120100 · Library Supplies 1,609.36 0.00 0.00 1,609.36

8130100 · Tech Services Supplies 4,769.64 0.00 0.00 4,769.64

8140100 · Adult Programs & Supplies 7,671.39 0.00 0.00 7,671.39

8145100 · Circulation Supplies 1,785.87 0.00 0.00 1,785.87

8147100 · Summer Reading Club 24.08 0.00 0.00 24.08

8150100 · Youth Programs & Supplies 6,346.76 0.00 0.00 6,346.76

8215100 · Collection Agency Fees 322.20 0.00 0.00 322.20

8245100 · Comp/OfcEqp/CopierRepairs/Contr 11,113.74 0.00 0.00 11,113.74

8310100 · CCS & SIRSI Expenses 23,608.00 0.00 0.00 23,608.00

8320100 · Network Expenses 7,445.12 0.00 0.00 7,445.12

8330100 · OCLC Services (cataloging) 3,224.00 0.00 0.00 3,224.00

8410100 · Payroll Exp, Acctg & Audit Serv 8,409.61 0.00 0.00 8,409.61

8430100 · Automation & Misc Consultants 470.00 0.00 0.00 470.00

8440100 · In Service Honorarium 600.00 0.00 0.00 600.00

8510100 · Printing 12,376.76 0.00 0.00 12,376.76

 Page 5 of 13



100 General 

Fund

200 Special 

Reserve Fund

300 Grant and 

Gift Fund TOTAL

8530100 · Public Notices & Ads 107.30 0.00 0.00 107.30

8540100 · Postage 2,686.23 0.00 0.00 2,686.23

8550100 · Public Relations/Promotions 3,166.13 0.00 0.00 3,166.13

8610100 · Electricity 8,262.96 0.00 0.00 8,262.96

8620100 · Gas 254.87 0.00 0.00 254.87

8630100 · Telephone 1,955.70 0.00 0.00 1,955.70

8635100 · T-1 & other Telecommunications 2,094.90 0.00 0.00 2,094.90

8640100 · Water & Sewer 3,204.98 0.00 0.00 3,204.98

8720100 · Building/Auto Insurance 20,698.00 0.00 0.00 20,698.00

8730100 · Bonding & Officers Liability 5,243.00 0.00 0.00 5,243.00

8740100 · Building & Grounds 20,869.51 0.00 0.00 20,869.51

8760100 · Hospitality 598.40 0.00 0.00 598.40

8770100 · Interlibrary Loan Fees & Losses 43.78 0.00 0.00 43.78

8800311 · Adult Materials - PER CAPITA 0.00 0.00 488.30 488.30

8910100 · Salaries 578,798.69 0.00 0.00 578,798.69

8920100 · FICA/Medicare 43,577.93 0.00 0.00 43,577.93

8930100 · IMRF 63,554.87 0.00 0.00 63,554.87

8940100 · Health & Life Insurance 95,615.63 0.00 0.00 95,615.63

8950100 · Tuition Reimbursement 618.84 0.00 0.00 618.84

8960100 · Memberships & Dues 989.96 0.00 0.00 989.96

8970100 · Meetings & Travel 2,351.37 0.00 0.00 2,351.37

9060100 · Library Furnishings 1,333.24 0.00 0.00 1,333.24

9090100 · Additional Capital Projects (2,037.03) 0.00 0.00 (2,037.03)

Total Expense 1,063,450.87 0.00 4,225.58 1,067,676.45

Net Income 474,671.23 3,714.53 (4,110.75) 474,275.01

 Page 6 of 13



McHenry Public Library District 6:42 PM

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures Budget vs. Actual 11/10/2016

July through October 2016 Cash Basis

Jul - Oct 16 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Income

6010100 · Property Taxes 1,509,092.02 3,180,652.28 (1,671,560.26) 47.45%

6020200 · Developer Fees 3,470.00 25,000.00 (21,530.00) 13.88%

6030100 · Interest Income - General 222.19 5,000.00 (4,777.81) 4.44%

6030200 · Interest Income - Spec Reserve 244.53 3,000.00 (2,755.47) 8.15%

6030300 · Interest Income - Grant & Gifts 63.87 2,500.00 (2,436.13) 2.56%

6035100 · Dividends 195.20 500.00 (304.80) 39.04%

6040100 · Nonresident & Enhanced Cards 135.00 1,000.00 (865.00) 13.5%

6050100 · Fines 14,229.02 55,000.00 (40,770.98) 25.87%

6055100 · Collection Fees 110.00 1,000.00 (890.00) 11.0%

6060100 · Photocopier & Fax Income 4,751.86 17,000.00 (12,248.14) 27.95%

6070200 · Reserve Fund Gifts 0.00 25,000.00 (25,000.00) 0.0%

6070300 · General Fund Gifts 50.96 20,000.00 (19,949.04) 0.26%

6090100 · Annexation Impact Fees 0.00 1,000.00 (1,000.00) 0.0%

6090200 · Transfer from General Fund 0.00 800,000.00 (800,000.00) 0.0%

6105100 · Staff Cobra/Insurance Payments 4,882.86 17,000.00 (12,117.14) 28.72%

6110100 · Program Fees/Misc Fees 2,160.00 4,200.00 (2,040.00) 51.43%

6120100 · Meeting Room Fees 175.00 1,000.00 (825.00) 17.5%

6130100 · Misc Income - General 923.03 25,000.00 (24,076.97) 3.69%

6130200 · Misc Income - Special Reserve 0.00 2,000.00 (2,000.00) 0.0%

6150100 · Lost & Damged Materials 1,249.92 6,000.00 (4,750.08) 20.83%

6170300 · Per Capita Grant 0.00 84,893.43 (84,893.43) 0.0%

6200100 · Over/Short (4.00) 0.00 (4.00) 100.0%

6210300 · Miscellaneous Grants 0.00 50,000.00 (50,000.00) 0.0%

Total Income 1,541,951.46 4,326,745.71 (2,784,794.25) 35.64%

Gross Profit 1,541,951.46 4,326,745.71 (2,784,794.25) 35.64%

Expense

8010100 · Adult Books 34,674.57 85,000.00 (50,325.43) 40.79%

8020100 · Youth Books 12,139.09 59,000.00 (46,860.91) 20.58%

8025100 · Professional Resources 4,201.39 3,500.00 701.39 120.04%

8028100 · Administrative Resources (GA) 289.97 6,400.00 (6,110.03) 4.53%

8030100 · Magazines & Newspapers 12,257.56 15,000.00 (2,742.44) 81.72%

8040300 · Operating Fund Gifts 3,737.28 448,381.10 (444,643.82) 0.83%

8050100 · Adult AV Materials 17,008.89 62,000.00 (44,991.11) 27.43%

8060100 · Youth AV Materials 3,379.11 16,000.00 (12,620.89) 21.12%

8080100 · Video Games 2,664.85 15,000.00 (12,335.15) 17.77%

8090100 · eBook & eMagazine Services 15,697.16 55,500.00 (39,802.84) 28.28%

8095100 · Electonic Subscriptions 17,371.68 80,000.00 (62,628.32) 21.72%

8110100 · Bank Service Charges 0.81 500.00 (499.19) 0.16%

8120100 · Library Supplies 1,609.36 10,000.00 (8,390.64) 16.09%

8130100 · Tech Services Supplies 4,769.64 57,200.00 (52,430.36) 8.34%

8135100 · Bindery 0.00 150.00 (150.00) 0.0%

8140100 · Adult Programs & Supplies 7,671.39 22,000.00 (14,328.61) 34.87%

8145100 · Circulation Supplies 1,785.87 12,000.00 (10,214.13) 14.88%

8147100 · Summer Reading Club 24.08 7,000.00 (6,975.92) 0.34%

8150100 · Youth Programs & Supplies 6,346.76 21,500.00 (15,153.24) 29.52%

8215100 · Collection Agency Fees 322.20 1,500.00 (1,177.80) 21.48%

8245100 · Comp/OfcEqp/CopierRepairs/Contr 11,113.74 59,000.00 (47,886.26) 18.84%

 Page 7 of 13



Jul - Oct 16 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

8260100 · Misc Contracted Services 0.00 2,000.00 (2,000.00) 0.0%

8270100 · Finance/Late Fee Charges 0.00 500.00 (500.00) 0.0%

8310100 · CCS & SIRSI Expenses 23,608.00 80,000.00 (56,392.00) 29.51%

8320100 · Network Expenses 7,445.12 25,000.00 (17,554.88) 29.78%

8330100 · OCLC Services (cataloging) 3,224.00 8,000.00 (4,776.00) 40.3%

8410100 · Payroll Exp, Acctg & Audit Serv 8,409.61 28,000.00 (19,590.39) 30.03%

8420100 · Legal Services 0.00 1,500.00 (1,500.00) 0.0%

8430100 · Automation & Misc Consultants 470.00 14,000.00 (13,530.00) 3.36%

8440100 · In Service Honorarium 600.00 1,000.00 (400.00) 60.0%

8510100 · Printing 12,376.76 36,000.00 (23,623.24) 34.38%

8530100 · Public Notices & Ads 107.30 3,000.00 (2,892.70) 3.58%

8540100 · Postage 2,686.23 18,000.00 (15,313.77) 14.92%

8550100 · Public Relations/Promotions 3,166.13 10,000.00 (6,833.87) 31.66%

8610100 · Electricity 8,262.96 25,000.00 (16,737.04) 33.05%

8620100 · Gas 254.87 2,500.00 (2,245.13) 10.2%

8630100 · Telephone 1,955.70 13,500.00 (11,544.30) 14.49%

8635100 · T-1 & other Telecommunications 2,094.90 7,000.00 (4,905.10) 29.93%

8640100 · Water & Sewer 3,204.98 3,500.00 (295.02) 91.57%

8720100 · Building/Auto Insurance 20,698.00 32,000.00 (11,302.00) 64.68%

8730100 · Bonding & Officers Liability 5,243.00 5,500.00 (257.00) 95.33%

8740100 · Building & Grounds 20,869.51 54,000.00 (33,130.49) 38.65%

8760100 · Hospitality 598.40 13,000.00 (12,401.60) 4.6%

8770100 · Interlibrary Loan Fees & Losses 43.78 700.00 (656.22) 6.25%

8795100 · Miscellaneous (FH) 0.00 4,000.00 (4,000.00) 0.0%

8800300 · Per Capita Grant expense for FY 0.00 32,393.43 (32,393.43) 0.0%

8800311 · Adult Materials - PER CAPITA 488.30 0.00 488.30 100.0%

8910100 · Salaries 578,798.69 1,810,000.00 (1,231,201.31) 31.98%

8920100 · FICA/Medicare 43,577.93 145,000.00 (101,422.07) 30.05%

8930100 · IMRF 63,554.87 180,000.00 (116,445.13) 35.31%

8940100 · Health & Life Insurance 95,615.63 260,000.00 (164,384.37) 36.78%

8950100 · Tuition Reimbursement 618.84 9,000.00 (8,381.16) 6.88%

8960100 · Memberships & Dues 989.96 8,000.00 (7,010.04) 12.38%

8970100 · Meetings & Travel 2,351.37 14,000.00 (11,648.63) 16.8%

9030300 · Misc Grants 0.00 25,000.00 (25,000.00) 0.0%

9050200 · Library District Act 0.00 150,000.00 (150,000.00) 0.0%

9060100 · Library Furnishings 1,333.24 35,000.00 (33,666.76) 3.81%

9070100 · Library Equipment 0.00 70,000.00 (70,000.00) 0.0%

9080100 · Small Equipment Under $250 0.00 10,000.00 (10,000.00) 0.0%

9090100 · Additional Capital Projects (2,037.03) 320,000.00 (322,037.03) (0.64%)

Total Expense 1,067,676.45 4,492,724.53 (3,425,048.08) 23.77%

Net Income 474,275.01 (165,978.82) 640,253.83 (285.74%)

 Page 8 of 13



McHenry Public Library District 6:43 PM

Statement of Revenue and Expenditures Budget vs. Actual 11/10/2016

July 1, 2016 - October 31, 2016 - General Fund Cash Basis

Jul - Oct 16 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Income

6010100 · Property Taxes 1,509,092.02 3,180,652.28 (1,671,560.26) 47.45%

6030100 · Interest Income - General 222.19 5,000.00 (4,777.81) 4.44%

6035100 · Dividends 195.20 500.00 (304.80) 39.04%

6040100 · Nonresident & Enhanced Cards 135.00 1,000.00 (865.00) 13.5%

6050100 · Fines 14,229.02 55,000.00 (40,770.98) 25.87%

6055100 · Collection Fees 110.00 1,000.00 (890.00) 11.0%

6060100 · Photocopier & Fax Income 4,751.86 17,000.00 (12,248.14) 27.95%

6090100 · Annexation Impact Fees 0.00 1,000.00 (1,000.00) 0.0%

6105100 · Staff Cobra/Insurance Payments 4,882.86 17,000.00 (12,117.14) 28.72%

6110100 · Program Fees/Misc Fees 2,160.00 4,200.00 (2,040.00) 51.43%

6120100 · Meeting Room Fees 175.00 1,000.00 (825.00) 17.5%

6130100 · Misc Income - General 923.03 25,000.00 (24,076.97) 3.69%

6150100 · Lost & Damged Materials 1,249.92 6,000.00 (4,750.08) 20.83%

6200100 · Over/Short (4.00) 0.00 (4.00) 100.0%

Total Income 1,538,122.10 3,314,352.28 (1,776,230.18) 46.41%

Gross Profit 1,538,122.10 3,314,352.28 (1,776,230.18) 46.41%

Expense

8010100 · Adult Books 34,674.57 85,000.00 (50,325.43) 40.79%

8020100 · Youth Books 12,139.09 59,000.00 (46,860.91) 20.58%

8025100 · Professional Resources 4,201.39 3,500.00 701.39 120.04%

8028100 · Administrative Resources (GA) 289.97 6,400.00 (6,110.03) 4.53%

8030100 · Magazines & Newspapers 12,257.56 15,000.00 (2,742.44) 81.72%

8050100 · Adult AV Materials 17,008.89 62,000.00 (44,991.11) 27.43%

8060100 · Youth AV Materials 3,379.11 16,000.00 (12,620.89) 21.12%

8080100 · Video Games 2,664.85 15,000.00 (12,335.15) 17.77%

8090100 · eBook & eMagazine Services 15,697.16 55,500.00 (39,802.84) 28.28%

8095100 · Electonic Subscriptions 17,371.68 80,000.00 (62,628.32) 21.72%

8110100 · Bank Service Charges 0.81 500.00 (499.19) 0.16%

8120100 · Library Supplies 1,609.36 10,000.00 (8,390.64) 16.09%

8130100 · Tech Services Supplies 4,769.64 57,200.00 (52,430.36) 8.34%

8135100 · Bindery 0.00 150.00 (150.00) 0.0%

8140100 · Adult Programs & Supplies 7,671.39 22,000.00 (14,328.61) 34.87%

8145100 · Circulation Supplies 1,785.87 12,000.00 (10,214.13) 14.88%

8147100 · Summer Reading Club 24.08 7,000.00 (6,975.92) 0.34%

8150100 · Youth Programs & Supplies 6,346.76 21,500.00 (15,153.24) 29.52%

8215100 · Collection Agency Fees 322.20 1,500.00 (1,177.80) 21.48%

8245100 · Comp/OfcEqp/CopierRepairs/Contr 11,113.74 59,000.00 (47,886.26) 18.84%

8260100 · Misc Contracted Services 0.00 2,000.00 (2,000.00) 0.0%

8270100 · Finance/Late Fee Charges 0.00 500.00 (500.00) 0.0%

8310100 · CCS & SIRSI Expenses 23,608.00 80,000.00 (56,392.00) 29.51%

8320100 · Network Expenses 7,445.12 25,000.00 (17,554.88) 29.78%

8330100 · OCLC Services (cataloging) 3,224.00 8,000.00 (4,776.00) 40.3%

8410100 · Payroll Exp, Acctg & Audit Serv 8,409.61 28,000.00 (19,590.39) 30.03%

8420100 · Legal Services 0.00 1,500.00 (1,500.00) 0.0%

8430100 · Automation & Misc Consultants 470.00 14,000.00 (13,530.00) 3.36%

8440100 · In Service Honorarium 600.00 1,000.00 (400.00) 60.0%

8510100 · Printing 12,376.76 36,000.00 (23,623.24) 34.38%

 Page 9 of 13



Jul - Oct 16 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

8530100 · Public Notices & Ads 107.30 3,000.00 (2,892.70) 3.58%

8540100 · Postage 2,686.23 18,000.00 (15,313.77) 14.92%

8550100 · Public Relations/Promotions 3,166.13 10,000.00 (6,833.87) 31.66%

8610100 · Electricity 8,262.96 25,000.00 (16,737.04) 33.05%

8620100 · Gas 254.87 2,500.00 (2,245.13) 10.2%

8630100 · Telephone 1,955.70 13,500.00 (11,544.30) 14.49%

8635100 · T-1 & other Telecommunications 2,094.90 7,000.00 (4,905.10) 29.93%

8640100 · Water & Sewer 3,204.98 3,500.00 (295.02) 91.57%

8720100 · Building/Auto Insurance 20,698.00 32,000.00 (11,302.00) 64.68%

8730100 · Bonding & Officers Liability 5,243.00 5,500.00 (257.00) 95.33%

8740100 · Building & Grounds 20,869.51 54,000.00 (33,130.49) 38.65%

8760100 · Hospitality 598.40 13,000.00 (12,401.60) 4.6%

8770100 · Interlibrary Loan Fees & Losses 43.78 700.00 (656.22) 6.25%

8795100 · Miscellaneous (FH) 0.00 4,000.00 (4,000.00) 0.0%

8910100 · Salaries 578,798.69 1,810,000.00 (1,231,201.31) 31.98%

8920100 · FICA/Medicare 43,577.93 145,000.00 (101,422.07) 30.05%

8930100 · IMRF 63,554.87 180,000.00 (116,445.13) 35.31%

8940100 · Health & Life Insurance 95,615.63 260,000.00 (164,384.37) 36.78%

8950100 · Tuition Reimbursement 618.84 9,000.00 (8,381.16) 6.88%

8960100 · Memberships & Dues 989.96 8,000.00 (7,010.04) 12.38%

8970100 · Meetings & Travel 2,351.37 14,000.00 (11,648.63) 16.8%

9060100 · Library Furnishings 1,333.24 35,000.00 (33,666.76) 3.81%

9070100 · Library Equipment 0.00 70,000.00 (70,000.00) 0.0%

9080100 · Small Equipment Under $250 0.00 10,000.00 (10,000.00) 0.0%

9090100 · Additional Capital Projects (2,037.03) 320,000.00 (322,037.03) (0.64%)

Total Expense 1,063,450.87 3,836,950.00 (2,773,499.13) 27.72%

Net Income 474,671.23 (522,597.72) 997,268.95 (90.83%)

 Page 10 of 13



McHenry Public Library District 6:45 PM

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures Budget vs. Actual 11/10/2016

July 1, 2016 - October 31, 2016 -Special Reserve Fund Cash Basis

Jul - Oct 16 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Income

6020200 · Developer Fees 3,470.00 25,000.00 (21,530.00) 13.88%

6030200 · Interest Income - Spec Reserve 244.53 3,000.00 (2,755.47) 8.15%

6070200 · Reserve Fund Gifts 0.00 25,000.00 (25,000.00) 0.0%

6090200 · Transfer from General Fund 0.00 800,000.00 (800,000.00) 0.0%

6130200 · Misc Income - Special Reserve 0.00 2,000.00 (2,000.00) 0.0%

Total Income 3,714.53 855,000.00 (851,285.47) 0.43%

Gross Profit 3,714.53 855,000.00 (851,285.47) 0.43%

Expense

9050200 · Library District Act 0.00 150,000.00 (150,000.00) 0.0%

Total Expense 0.00 150,000.00 (150,000.00) 0.0%

Net Income 3,714.53 705,000.00 (701,285.47) 0.53%

 Page 11 of 13



McHenry Public Library District 6:46 PM

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures Budget vs. Actual 11/10/2016

July 1, 2016 - October 31, 2016 - Grant and Gift Fund Cash Basis

Jul - Sep 16 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Income

6030300 · Interest Income - Grant & Gifts 63.87 2,500.00 (2,436.13) 2.56%

6070300 · General Fund Gifts 50.96 20,000.00 (19,949.04) 0.26%

6170300 · Per Capita Grant 0.00 84,893.43 (84,893.43) 0.0%

6210300 · Miscellaneous Grants 0.00 50,000.00 (50,000.00) 0.0%

Total Income 114.83 157,393.43 (157,278.60) 0.07%

Gross Profit 114.83 157,393.43 (157,278.60) 0.07%

Expense

8040300 · Operating Fund Gifts 3,737.28 448,381.10 (444,643.82) 0.83%

8800300 · Per Capita Grant expense for FY 0.00 32,393.43 (32,393.43) 0.0%

8800311 · Adult Materials - PER CAPITA 488.30 0.00 488.30 100.0%

9030300 · Misc Grants 0.00 25,000.00 (25,000.00) 0.0%

Total Expense 4,225.58 505,774.53 (501,548.95) 0.84%

Net Income (4,110.75) (348,381.10) 344,270.35 1.18%

 Page 12 of 13



McHenry Public Library District

INTERIM CHECKS ISSUED - October 2016

(NOT INCLUDED ON BILL REPORT)

Account - Money Market    

VENDOR DESCRIPTION  AMOUNT ACCT# DATE CHECK

(no checks written on this account)

subtotal for account -$               

Account - General Fund

VENDOR DESCRIPTION  AMOUNT ACCT# DATE CHECK

subtotal for account -$               

Account - HSA/Building 

First Midwest Bank employee contributions HSA 693.94$         8940-100 10/20/16 EFT

First Midwest Bank employer contributions HSA 646.24$         8940-100 10/20/16 EFT

First Midwest Bank employee contributions HSA 693.94$         8940-100 10/21/16 EFT

First Midwest Bank employer contributions HSA 646.24$         8940-100 10/21/16 EFT

First Midwest Bank employee contributions HSA 693.94$         8940-100 10/28/16 EFT

First Midwest Bank employer contributions HSA 646.24$         8940-100 10/28/16 EFT

subtotal for account 4,020.54$      

Account  - Payroll    

VENDOR DESCRIPTION  AMOUNT ACCT# DATE CHECK

subtotal for account -$               

Account - Imprest    

VENDOR DESCRIPTION   AMOUNT  ACCT# DATE CHECK

Angles Meetings & Travel 200.00$         8970-100 10/07/16 1131

 subtotal for account 200.00$            

 

GRAND TOTAL CHECKS ISSUED 4,220.54$      



1 
 

McHenry Public Library District 

LIBRARIAN’S REPORT 

October 2016 

 

Administration 

 Admin. working on projects: finalizing FY2015/16 audit; FY2016/17 budget; health insurance benefits 

and new resolution for travel. 

 Solar array refurbish and new install (timetable) 

 McHenry County Library Directors met at MPLD, 10/28. 

 Friends of Library book sale completed 10/15-16 and 10/23.  Both J. Scholtz and B. Edminster worked 

sale on alternate dates + Scholtz worked Clearance sale, 10/30.  It was very well attended. 

 B. Edminster and Kathy Lambert attended a Career Online High School webinar on public relations, 

10/13 &10/25. 

 J. Scholtz and B. Edminster were the judges for the staff Halloween costume contest, 10/26. 

 B. Edminster attended the Assistant Directors’ Networking meeting in Des Plaines, 10/28. 

 Scholtz working on digitization project for Richmond Gazette – could mean funding for digitization of 

PlainDealer (already available on NewsBank/Newspapers.com) 

 Library is polling place for national election 11/8. 

 Admin working on staff benefits – health/dental/vision and life insurance with Vantage Benefits. 

 Admin working on new policies – child bereavement and trustee travel – to be integrated within our 

existing policy manuals 

 CCS has received RFPs from 3 ILS vendors – directors will be scoring vendors.  Selection of new 

vendor Feb. 2017.  

 10/25 flute program was very well attended with 41 registering – 39 showed up. 

 

Adult Services 

 Both YS and AD have decided upon new furniture for 3 study rooms.  Maintenance will be painting 
accent walls in each room + doing some soundproofing after red floor tile work is complete. 

 
Building Services 

 Maintenance has started the repair of the main library floor. The enclosure is setup and the computers 

and tables have been moved. 

 Setup for the election 

 Truck repairs: transmission, rear end, oil change, and gear box.  

 Preparing for winter: Salt and snow throwers are ready. 

Circulation 

 S. Willis reports 176 expired holds were pulled in October. 

 Circulation implemented a new website designed to locate library districts using the patron’s address. 

 L. Rex attended a Front End Safety and Security seminar in Rockford. 

 L. Rex and B. Niepsuj attended an ILL/CCS meeting at the Lake Villa District Library where new CCS 

Director, Rebecca Malinowski, was introduced. 

 D. Kuhlman’s grandson, Jack, arrived. 

 

Human Resources 

 No changes in staffing (FTE) for the month. 

 Partnered with Kathy Lambert to update the Career Opportunities page on the MPLD website and 

preparing to keep this page active with current recruitment activity. 



2 
 

 Partnered with Kathy also on a spot to permanently display recruitment activity (for public and 

employees) near the front desk.  Signage is displayed next to the Preface copies. 

 Acknowledged two milestone service anniversaries: 

o Deb Lavin, 15 years 

o Bonnie Niepsuj, 20 years 

 Participated in a Non-Profit salary survey sponsored by the Management Association.  Results will 

provide data within the non-profit sector for non-library specific positions (i.e. Admin, Building Services, 

and IT). 

 Salary Increase Information:  Data is pulled from a minimum of 3 months (vs. monthly) to maintain 

confidentiality and also provide meaningful numbers. 

o Average Salary increase for the Last 3 months – 2.61% 

 This average calculation is missing data from two employees whose salary increases 

have not yet been submitted. 

o Average Salary increase for the Last Calendar Quarter – 2.5% 

o Average Salary increase for the FY 2016-2017 (year-to-date) – 2.57% 

 This average calculation is missing data from two employees whose salary increases 

have not yet been submitted. 

o Fiscal YTD:  two employees did not receive an increase due to performance and one employee 

has received a lump-sum merit vs. an increase to their base salary 

 Staff In-Service Meeting held on the morning of October 14th was attended by only 56% of staff.  The 

topic of diversity (focused on the LGBT community) was well presented by an outside vendor and 

feedback from the staff was positive.  

o Historical:  August 12th (pm) – Attended by 81% of staff 

 Advised managers of approx. 15 employees that have excessive vacation PTO balances (i.e. more 

than half of their annual allowance with only 3 months remaining in the year). 

 Continued to work with broker on benefit renewal process. 

 Surveyed full-time employees to determine interest in a supplemental term life insurance benefit and 

tolerance for increased cost-sharing. 

 Participated in webinars on the following topics: 

o Employee Handbooks 

o Social Media 

 

Public Relations  

 November/December Preface newsletter was mailed to district residents on October 15. 

 Promoted programs/events using various media – print, indoor & outdoor digital signage,  

e-newsletter, press releases, posters, online calendars, web site. 

 Maintained & updated web site as needed. 

 Participated in CCS/LibraryAware webinar re: new marketing campaign to generate awareness of 

library services. New Social Media campaign will begin in early November and run for 10 weeks. 

 Worked with Bill to continue promoting new Career Online High School program. Participated in 

marketing webinars on the program. Created posters, posted on website, sent press release to media. 

Will coordinate with Zach T. in Adult Services to get materials to area businesses. 

 Prepared materials for Friends Fall Book Sale – bookmarks, coupons, posters – and promoted on 

various outlets (website, digital signage, press release, calendars). 

 Attended Management Team meeting. 

 Prepared newspaper clippings for board packet. 

 Attended Management Team meeting, staff In-Service and Sunshine Committee meeting. 

 



3 
 

Technical Services   

 Deb, Keith, Kimberly, Pat and Kathy attended the Staff In-service, 10/14 

 Kathy, Kevin, Deb and Keith participated in tour provided to Follett staff, 10/24 & 10/26 

 K. Walker ran the Dungeons and Dragons event, 10/11 

 K. Walker assisted with the ComicCon, 10/12 

 K. Milfajt moderated the Contemporary Book Discussion group, 10/5 

 K. Milfajt attended the CCS Cataloger’s meeting, 10/10 

 K. Milfajt attended and ran the SCRAP meeting, 10/26 

 

Technology 

 IT Closed 60 Help desk Tickets this month. 

 IT Updated all public workstation apps this month. 

 IT Assisted with ComicCon, 10/12 

 IT Assisted staff with various computer issues. 

 IT Attended Management team meeting and staff In-Service. 

 

Youth Services 

 Spanish interactions: Adults-105, Teens-26, Children-178 

 This October the library hosted its’ 18th Annual ComiCon! This year saw over 400 patrons attend the 
evening events. Patrons could meet a variety of comic/ graphic artists, view the wares of local comic 
and gaming vendors, participate in the CosPlay contest or the gaming tournament or pick up from 
comic book freebies. This joint program between Adult and Youth Services have grown every year and 
is very successful and well loved by the community.  

 G. Doolan and M.Dineen put on a performance for our “Halloween Bash!” Gwen found a cute Jack ‘o’ 
Lantern song and adapted the story of the “Chocolate Chip Ghost” into a flannel story. Kids enjoyed 
trick-or-treating around the library and then having a dance party to end the bash. 

 M.Dineen hosted a Stuffed Animal Sleepover at the library. Kids and their stuffed animals came to a 
storytime in the evening and then the stuffed animals got to spend the night at the library. After the kids 
left the stuffed animals got into some hijinks at the library like using the copier and playing on the 
computers. The next morning the kids picked up their animals and got to see pictures of what their 
friends did during the sleepover. Molly had a good turnout for the program and received many 
compliments.  

 C.Bergan met one-on-one with a few teachers and librarians in District 15 to go over library services 
available to teachers in the district and their students. Caitlin was able to demonstrate numerous 
databases that could assist students with projects and brainstorm ways the databases could be used in 
the classroom. 

 J. Velasquez and the Garden Quarter Neighborhood Resource Center put together a beautiful “Ofrenda 
Comunitaria para el Día de los Muertos/ Day of the Dead Community Offering.” The Garden Quarter 
families made papel picado and tissue paper flowers for the display at the center. They then brought 
those items to the library and along with some other day of the dead decoration created a display that 
featured pictures of family members and famous Mexican performers. Jennifer created informational 
cards in English and Spanish about the different items found in a ofrenda.  

 

 R. Raleigh’s “Teen Green Screen” program was a success with the teens. Using iPads and a green 
screen app the teens were able to add themselves into a variety of pictures and movie scenes and edit 
the image. The feedback from the teens about the program was really good and many of the teens 
downloaded the app on their personal devices to use after the program.  

 J. Drinka is our steadfast host of the Afterschool Snack program. He also puts together our enrichment 
activities for the snack program and has gotten to express his creativity by creating original handouts 
with drawings to color in, mazes and puzzles.  

 M. Cairo held her second Ozobot program this month with many of the same children who attended the 
first program bringing friends. One of the parents who came to pick up their child commented on how 



4 
 

excited her son was to come. “ He feels like he is part of a group of kids who understand his disability” 
(slight autism) . Ozobots are on the top of his list for Christmas!  

 L. Jakacki lead staff in a team building ice-breaker at the October In-Service Meeting. Staff were broken 
into 3 groups and each given a word: “Wisdom”, “Knowledge” ,and “Dreams.” They were then asked to 
come up with a list of words that the associated with these words in terms of libraries, library service, 
programs and outreach. It was interested when the groups read out their lists how many concepts 
overlapped especially the concepts of offering a welcoming and accepting space and attitude. 
 

Statistics and Highlights Narrative 

Legend – ABk – Adult Books; JBk – Children’s Books; PBk – Paperback Books; AudBk – Audio books; JAudBk 

– Children’s Audio books; ILL – Interlibrary loan; Vid/DVD – Videos/DVDs; JVid/DVD – Children’s 

Videos/DVDs; Oth - Other 

The TS Dept. added 1438 items (-24%) and withdrew 1606 (-15%) compared with October 2016.  Staff also 
mended 800 items (-6%) and processed 1217 new items (-35%).    Overall circulation decreased by (-13%) 
from the previous year/month and we were open the same number of days as last year/same month (29) – 
ave. circulation 1526 per day.  Most areas decreased in circulation counts:  Holds increased (+2%) but renewal 
decreased (-13%).  eEmaterials increased substantially:  Zinio (+64%); Hoopla (+15%).   Patron traffic 
increased by +5% (15,318 from 14,525) but that increased traffic did not seem to increase circulation – 
possibly due to increased program attendance.  We need to look at what materials people are checking 
out/why and build our displays around what people want.  Also, class visits increased by (+177%) as well as 
Adult programming (+228%).  YPS had 2,893 children attend programs while Adult has 634 – excellent 
numbers on both fronts – we just need some of those numbers to translate into more circulations.   

Upcoming Events and Projects 

 Set-up staff/board visits to area libraries and RFID libraries (Nov. 2016– Jan.2017) 

 Solar array project designated for mid-March 2017 date 

 Plan for new ILS + staff training 

 Lift station project (discovery) 

 Exploration of various community projects (supply garden/Chautauqua, etc.) 

 Explore new addition for TS/YS, reading garden – site/costs, etc. (with Gillespie Design) 

 Staff holiday party + in-service 12/9; New benefits chosen – educate/enroll staff 

 

 



5 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



6 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



7 
 

 

 

 

 

 



8 
 

 

 

 

 

 



EXECUTIVE SESSION MINUTES  

MCHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT  

BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

 
 

 

Date: October 18, 2016  

Time: 7:57 p.m. 

Location:  Library Board Meeting Room  

 

 

Members Present: Kathy Beaderstadt, Margaret Carey, Delphine Grala, Monica Leccese, Charles Reilly, 

and Bradley Schubert  

  

Members Absent: Jill Stone 

 

 

During Executive Session, the Board discussed the appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, 

performance or dismissal of specific employees of the public body in compliance with the Open 

Meetings Act 5 ILCS 120/2 section 2(c)(1) and review and release of the September 20, 2016 executive 

session minutes.  

 

No action was taken during Executive Session. 

 

 

      Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Monica Leccese, Secretary  

 

 

 
Text for Motion Sheet 

 

1. Roll Call 

 

 

DATE:  October 18, 2016 

Called to Order: 7:57 p.m. 

Kathy 

Beaderstadt 

Margaret 

Carey 

Delphine 

Grala 

Monica 

Leccese 

Charles 

Reilly 

Bradley 

Schubert 

Jill 

Stone 

1.  Roll call P P P P P P NP 

 
A=Abstain, M=Motion, N=No, NP=Not Present, P=Present, S=Second, Y=Yes 



 

 

 

McHenry Public Library District 

809 N. Front St. 

McHenry, IL  60050 

815.385.0036;  FAX 815.385.7085 

 

 

MEMO 

 

TO:  MPLD Board of Trustees 

FROM: Jim Scholtz, Executive Director, MPLD 

RE:  Policy Update Due to Public Act 99-0604 

DATE: 11-15-2016 

 

Please refer to Resolution 2016/2017-6 (Public Act 99-0604) 

 

 

TRAVEL and TRAINING EXPENSES 

POLICY  
From time to time employees, library trustees and officers must travel off-site to attend various 
seminars, conferences, workshops or other work related activities as they conduct normal 
business.  This travel can encompass day trips, overnight or extended travel as it relates to in-
state, out-of-state and possibly, international travel for the purpose of pre-authorized business.   
The MPLD will reimburse employees and trustees for approved travel expenses.  The 
employee has the option of choosing the actual travel expense method (accompanied by 
appropriate and adequate receipt documentation OR accepting a per diem amount.  These 
amounts/methods cannot be mixed for a travel event.  All travel expenses must be approved 
by appropriate Department Manager and the Executive Director or the Board President.  The 
intent of this policy is to provide a flexible method for reimbursement of travel expenses for 
business while simultaneously devising rules for prudent Pre-approval of expenses is 
recommended when time permits.  Approved travel expenses include: 

Mileage (at the IRS mileage rate) Registration fees 
Tolls                                                                                             Hotel 
Parking, Taxis, car rental, other transportation Airfare (economy class) 
Meals, when the event includes meals or when meals revolve around the day’s activities such as in a 
conference, workshop or are part of travel to/from the event. 

 

GUIDELINES and PRACTICES FOR IMPLEMENTATION  
Travel expenses must be pre-approved (before the travel date) by the employees supervisor 
and the Executive Director (in the case of employees) and by the Executive Director and the 
Board President (in the case of trustees).  Generally, the least expensive form of safe and 
expeditious travel is recommended with defaults being auto/air travel, Economy airfare.  The 
MPLD follows the GSA/CONUS per diem rate, set annually:  for example:  2016/17 rate is 
$142; $91 lodging, $51 meals and incidental expenses.  Mileage reimbursement rate is set 
annually by the IRS. A copy of the travel reimbursement form can be found on the staff 



Intranet or procured through the Business Manager.  Appropriate documentation must 
accompany the travel reimbursement form (i.e. receipts, travel confirmation forms, etc.). Only 
documented expenses will be reimbursed.  In cases where expenses exceed per diem rates, 
actual expenses will be paid/reimbursed only if/when accurate receipts are produced by the 
attendee.  In these special cases, pre-approval of travel plans/expenses is mandatory. 
Library trustees are covered under this reimbursement policy relative to ILCS (PA 99-0604, 
effective 1/1/2017). 

Note:  When an exempt employee attends a seminar, conference or workshop, they are 
compensated for the hours usually worked that day (7.5). Neither overtime pay nor 
compensatory time will be paid or applied in this situation so the employee should make 
every effort to adjust travel and conference schedules or plan to use their free time.  The 
Executive Director must approve any exceptions to this prior to the conference, meeting, 
workshop or continuing education event. 

An employee's attendance at a conference, seminar or workshop should not result in any 
reduction of library service to the public. Requests for conference attendance shall be granted 
subject to the following guidelines (also refer to memo 7/28/2011, appendices): 

1. No release time shall be authorized unless the library schedule is covered without staff 
overtime or hiring staff to work additional hours. 

2. First consideration shall be given to staff members who hold an office or serve as a 
committee chair for the convening professional organization. 

3. Second consideration shall be given to staff members who are program presenters or 
are committee members of the convening professional organization. 

4. Third consideration shall be given to staff members who are also members of the 
convening professional organization. 

5. If the budget and schedule permit, non-members of an association may also request 
to attend a professional conference. The Executive Director will evaluate these requests on 
an individual basis. 

6. Currently, the MPLD does not have a conference exclusion policy or priority list of who 
can attend what conference when nor does it employ any lottery techniques for 
attendance.  Priority in attendance will be judged by the Executive Director relative to 
budgetary limitations and staffing needs.  The Executive Director along with the Board of 
Trustees will be in charge of these decisions/policy changes. 

 

 

 Note:  any time this policy changes, according to Public Act 99-0604 (covering library 

trustees), MPLD must pass a new resolution/ordinance to establish regulations/rules for 

reimbursed travel expenses. 

 

 

 

 



A. Purpose. 

The [Name of Library] (“Library”) will reimburse employee and officer travel, meal, and lodging 

expenses incurred in connection with pre-approved travel, meal, and lodging expenses incurred on behalf 

of the Library. Employees and officers are expected to exercise the same care in incurring expenses for 

official business as a prudent person would in spending personal funds.   

B. Definitions.  

"Entertainment" includes, but is not limited to, shows,  amusements, theaters, circuses, sporting events, or 

any other  place of public or private entertainment or amusement, unless  ancillary to the purpose of the 

program or event.  

"Travel" means any expenditure directly incident to official travel by employees and officers of the 

Library involving reimbursement to travelers or direct payment to private agencies providing 

transportation or related services. 

C. Authorized Types of Official Business. 

Travel, meal and lodging expenses will be reimbursed for employees and officers of the Library only for 

purposes of official business conducted on behalf of the Library. These include but are not limited to off-

site or out-of-town meetings related to official business and pre-approved seminars, conferences and other 

educational events related to the employee’s or officer’s official duties. If you are unsure whether an 

expense is reimbursable, please contact the Library Director. 

D. Categories of Expenses.    

1. Airfare – Travelers are expected to obtain the lowest available airfare that reasonably meets 

business travel needs.  Travelers are encouraged to book flights at least 30 days in advance to 

avoid premium airfare pricing.  Only coach or economy tickets will be paid or 

reimbursed.  The traveler will pay for the difference between higher priced tickets and coach 

or economy tickets with his or her personal funds. 

2. Personal Automobiles –Mileage reimbursement will be based on mileage from the work 

location office to the off-site location of the official business, not from the employee’s or 

officer’s residence.  When attending a training event or other off-site official business directly 

from an employee’s or officer’s residence, no reimbursement will be made if the distance is 

less than the mileage of a normal commute to the workplace.  If the distance is higher than the 

employee’s or officer’s normal commute, reimbursement will be paid based on the differential 

of the commute less the mileage of a normal commute to the workplace.  An employee or 

officer will be reimbursed at the prevailing IRS mileage rate.  The traveler will only be 

reimbursed up to the price of a coach airfare ticket if they drive to a location for which airfare 

would have been less expensive. 

3. Automobile Rentals – Travelers will be reimbursed for the cost of renting an automobile 

including gasoline expense only as provided in this section.  Travelers using rental cars to 

conduct official business are required to purchase insurance through the rental agency.  Car 

rental insurance will cover the vehicle during personal use, e.g., using the vehicle after the 

conference has ended.  Compact or mid– size cars are required for two or fewer employees or 



officers traveling together and a full– size vehicle may be used for three or more 

travelers.  The traveler must refuel the vehicle before returning it to the rental company. 

4. Public Transportation –  In the case of local training or official business where an employee 

or officer chooses to use public transportation, reimbursement for use of public transportation 

is based on mileage from the agency office to the training site (not from the traveler’s 

residence), regardless of the transportation method chosen.  When attending training or 

business directly from an employee’s or officer’s residence, no reimbursement will be made if 

the distance is less than the mileage of a normal commute to the workplace.  If the distance is 

higher than the traveler’s normal commute, reimbursement will paid at the differential of the 

commute less the mileage of a normal commute to the workplace. 

5. Other Transportation – The traveler should utilize hotel shuttle service or other shuttle 

services, if available.  If none are offered, the use of the most economic transportation is 

encouraged.   

6. Hotel/Motel Accommodations – The traveler will be reimbursed for a standard single-room 

at locations convenient to the business activity.  In the event of a change in plans or a 

cancellation, the traveler must cancel the hotel/motel reservation so as not to incur cancellation 

charges.  Cancellation charges will not be reimbursed by the Library unless approved by a vote 

of the Library Board of Trustees. 

7. Meals - Meal reimbursement is limited to the current U.S. General Services Administration 

(GSA) regulations in place at the time the expense is occurred.  

[If Library allows a per diem]  Prior approval by the Library’s Board of Trustees and 

submission of receipts are required for per diem allowances. Meals provided by the conference 

or seminar should be deducted from the per diem allowance.  Partial reimbursement may be 

made for departure and return days based on time.  Meals during in-state travel that is not an 

overnight stay will be reimbursed for actual cost not to exceed the GSA regulations.   

8. Vacation in Conjunction with Business Travel – In cases where vacation time is added to a 

business trip, any cost variance in airfare, car rental, lodging and/or any other expenses must 

be clearly identified on the Travel, Meal, and Lodging Expense Report form and paid by the 

traveler. 

9. Accompanied Travel – When a traveler is accompanied by others not on official business, 

any lodging, transportation, meals or other expenses above those incurred for the authorized 

traveler will not be reimbursed by the Library. 

10. Parking – Parking fees at a hotel/motel, conference center, or other site will be reimbursed 

only with a receipt. 

11. Entertainment Expenses - No employee or officer of the Library shall be reimbursed for any 

entertainment expense, unless ancillary to the purpose of the program, event or other official 

business.   



E. Approval of Expenses. 

1. Expenses for Members of the Library Board of Trustees. Travel, meal, and lodging 

expenses incurred by any member of the Library Board of Trustees must be approved by roll 

call vote at an open meeting of the Library Board of Trustees. 

2. Expenses for Officials or Employees Other than Members of the Library Board of 

Trustees. Travel, meal, and lodging expenses incurred by any official or employee not 

covered by paragraph 1 (member of the Library Board of Trustees) in excess of the [maximum 

dollar amount set by the Board or GSA rate or IRS rate] must be previously approved in an 

open meeting by a majority roll-call vote of the Library Board of Trustees. 

3. Advanced Expenses.  Travel, meal, and lodging expenses advanced as a per diem to any 

employee or official of the Library must be approved by roll call vote at an open meeting of 

the Library Board of Trustees prior to payment. Documentation of expenses must be provided 

in accordance with Sections C, D and F of this policy, and any excess from the per diem must 

be repaid. 

4. Other Expenses. All other expenses that do not fall within paragraphs E.1, E.2, or E.3 are 

subject to the Library Director’s approval. 

F. Documentation of Expenses. 

Before an expense for travel, meals, or lodging may be approved under Section E of this Policy, the 

following minimum documentation must first be submitted, in writing, to the Library Director on a 

Travel, Meal, and Lodging Expense form:   

1. an estimate of the cost of travel, meals, or lodging if expenses have not been incurred or a 

receipt for the travel, meals, or lodging if expenses have already been incurred;   

2. the name of the individual who received or is requesting the travel, meal, or lodging expense 

reimbursement;  

3. the job title or office of the individual who received or is requesting the travel, meal, or lodging 

expense reimbursement; and   

4. the date or dates and nature of the official business for which the travel, meal, or lodging 

expense was or will be expended.   

All documents and information submitted in connection with this Policy are public records subject to 

disclosure under the Freedom of Information Act.  

G. Travel, Meal, and Lodging Expense Report Form. 

The Library hereby adopts as its official standardized form for the submission of travel, meal, and lodging 

expenses the Travel, Meal, and Lodging Expense Report form attached hereto and incorporated herein as 

Attachment 1. 

Attachment 1 



[Name of Library] 

TRAVEL, MEAL AND LODGING EXPENSE 

REIMBURSEMENT FORM 

 

Name of Official or Employee: __________________________________________________ 

 

Title/Position of Official or Employees: ___________________________________________ 

 

Name and Date of the Activity/Event: ____________________________________________ 

 

Check Number (if applicable): __________________________________________________ 

 

Credit Card Receipt Number (if applicable): _______________________________________ 

 

Description of the purpose of the expense: 

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________ 

 

Reimbursement Expense (Estimated Costs or Actual Costs with receipts, if applicable): 

 

Mileage:_____________________________________________________________________  

 

Meals: ______________________________________________________________________ 

 

Parking: _____________________________________________________________________ 

 

Hotel/Lodging:________________________________________________________________ 

 

Car rental: ___________________________________________________________________ 

 

Airfare: _____________________________________________________________________ 

 

Other Transportation (bus, train, taxi, car share, shuttle, etc):___________________________ 

 

Employee’s/Officer’s Signature:_______________________________________________ 

Date: ____________________ 

 

Library Director’s Authorization:________________________________________________ 

Date: ____________________ 

 

ATTACH ALL RECEIPTS 

 



 

 

McHenry Public Library District Library 

RESOLUTION NO.  2016/2017-6 

RESOLUTION OF THE McHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT BOARD OF 

TRUSTEES ESTABLISHING A POLICY TO REGULATE THE REIMBURSEMENET 

OF ALL TRAVEL, MEAL, LODGING AND MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES OF 

LIBRARY EMPLOYEES, OFFICERS AND TRUSTEES INACCORDANCE WITH THE 

ILLINOIS LOCAL GOVERNMENT TRAVEL EXPENSE CONTROL ACT (1/1/2017) 

 

WHEREAS, the McHenry Public Library District is a non-home rule unit of local government 

(“Library”); and 

WHEREAS, Public Act 099-0604, effective January 1, 2017, established the Local Government 

Travel Expense Control Act which requires all non-home units of local government to adopt by 

resolution or ordinance a policy governing reimbursement of all travel, meal, and lodging 

expenses of trustees, officers and employees; and 

WHEREAS, the Library Board of Trustees finds it to be in the best interest of the Library to 

adopt a policy in compliance with the new law;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the McHenry Public Library Board of Trustees, 

as follows: 

Section 1. The Library Board of Trustees hereby adopts the “Expense Reimbursement Policy 

for Travel, Meal and Lodging Expenses,” attached as Exhibit A, and hereafter, incorporated into 

the Library’s existing Internal Staff Policy Manual. 

Section 2. All ordinances, resolutions, and regulations in conflict with this Resolution are 

hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict.   

Section 3. This Resolution is effective on and after _________________________, [2016] 

and remains in effect until either the public law and/or the library policies change; at which time 

a new resolution will be recommended/passed. 

PASSED by the McHenry Public Library Board of Trustees, McHenry County, Illinois, on 15
th

, 

November, 2016. 

Ayes:       Attest: 

Nays: 

Absent:      ______________________________ 

       Monica Leccese, Secretary 

______________________________ 

Kathy Beaderstadt, President  

 



 

 

Expense Reimbursement Policy for Travel, Meal and Lodging Expenses 

 

A. Purpose. 

The MPLD will reimburse trustee, officer and employee travel, meal, and lodging expenses 

incurred in connection with pre-approved travel, meal, and lodging expenses incurred on behalf 

of the Library during the normal course of doing business. Note that this policy reflects library 

procedures as well as IL PA 99-604 (i.e. the Local Government Travel Expense Control Act).  

All persons seeking travel reimbursement are expected to exercise the same prudent care in 

incurring expenses for official business as a prudent person would in spending personal funds.  

Actual expenses will be reimbursed; no per diem exists within MPLD policies; although mileage 

for car/rental car is optional (at the IRS rate) instead of actual expenses.   

B. Definitions.  

"Travel" means any expenditure directly incident to official travel by employees, trustees and 

officers of the Library involving reimbursement to travelers or direct payment to private agencies 

providing transportation or related services. 

C. Authorized Types of Official Business. 

Travel, meal and lodging expenses will be reimbursed for employees, trustees and officers of 

MPLD only for purposes of official business conducted on behalf of the MPLD. These include 

but are not limited to off-site or out-of-town meetings related to official business and pre-

approved seminars, conferences and other educational events related to the employee’s or 

officer’s official duties. No reimbursement for entertainment expenses (see Section 25 of PA 99-

604 for complete description) unless that entertainment is inexorably linked to a meal event (i.e. 

awards/honors dinner, dinner cruise, etc.).  If you are unsure whether an expense is reimbursable, 

please contact the Executive Director or the Business Manager. 

D. Categories of Expenses.    

1. Airfare – Travelers are expected to obtain the lowest available airfare that reasonably 

meets business travel needs.  Travelers are encouraged to book flights at least thirty 

(30) days in advance to avoid premium airfare pricing.  Only coach or economy 

tickets will be paid or reimbursed.  The traveler will pay for the difference between 

higher priced tickets and coach or economy tickets with his or her personal funds. 

2. Personal Automobiles –Mileage reimbursement will be based on mileage from the 

work location office to the off-site location of the official business, not from the 

employee’s or officer’s residence.  When attending a training event or other off-site 

official business directly from an employee’s or officer’s residence, no 

reimbursement will be made if the distance is less than the mileage of a normal 

commute to the workplace.  If the distance is higher than the employee’s or officer’s 

normal commute, reimbursement will be paid based on the differential of the 

commute less the mileage of a normal commute to the workplace.  An employee or 

officer will be reimbursed at the prevailing IRS mileage rate.  Actual expenses of gas 

will be an optional reimbursement technique as long as all receipts are included – 

minus sales tax.  For airfare, travelers will only be reimbursed up to the price of a 



 

 

coach/economy airfare ticket if they drive to a location for which airfare would have 

been less expensive. 

3. Automobile Rentals – Travelers will be reimbursed for the cost of renting an 

automobile including gasoline expense only as provided in this section and 

#2.  Travelers using rental cars to conduct official business are required to purchase 

insurance through the rental agency.  Car rental insurance will cover the vehicle 

during personal use, e.g., using the vehicle after the conference has ended.  Compact 

or mid– size cars are required for two or fewer employees or officers traveling 

together and a full– size vehicle may be used for three or more travelers.   

4. Public Transportation –  In the case of local training or official business where an 

employee or officer chooses to use public transportation, reimbursement for use of 

public transportation is based on actual form of transportations used (as a to/from) the 

point of departure (i.e. leaving from home vs. leaving from work; arriving at home vs. 

arriving at work), regardless of the transportation method chosen (bus, train, plane) 

.  When attending training or business directly from an employee’s or officer’s 

residence, no reimbursement will be made if the distance is less than the mileage of a 

normal commute to the workplace.  If the distance is higher than the traveler’s normal 

commute, reimbursement will paid at the differential of the commute less the mileage 

of a normal commute to the workplace. 

5. Other Transportation – The traveler should utilize hotel/motel shuttle service or 

other shuttle/bus services if/when available.  If none are offered or are convenient, 

then the use of the most economic form of transportation is encouraged. 

6. Hotel/Motel Accommodations -  The traveler will be reimbursed for a standard 

single room at locations convenient to the conference/business activity.  In the case of 

room sharing, the traveler will be reimbursed for their portion of the room shown as 

part of the total bill or a hotel-prepared divided bill.  Entertainment such as mini-bar, 

pay-for-view movies, sports events, etc. will NOT be reimbursed.  Cancellation 

charges will normally NOT be reimbursed. 

  

i. Hotel/Motel Accommodations – The traveler will be reimbursed for a standard 

single-room at locations convenient to the business activity.  In the case of room 

sharing the traveler will be reimbursed for their portion of the room.  In the event 

of a change in plans or a cancellation, the traveler must cancel the hotel/motel 

reservation so as not to incur cancellation charges.  Cancellation charges will not 

be reimbursed by the Library unless approved by the Executive Director or 

Library Board President (i.e. traveler is a trustee/officer).  Meals - Meal expenses 

(even as reimbursed actual) will be limited to the following normal limits: $20 

(breakfast); $30 lunch/dinner and ($50) evening meal/supper.  Tips are not 

included in these limits and will NOT be reimbursed. Normally, purchase of 

alcoholic beverages will not be reimbursed unless they are part of a meal.    



 

 

 

[If Library allows a per diem]  Prior approval by the Library’s Board of Trustees and 

submission of receipts are required for per diem allowances. Meals provided by the 

conference or seminar should be deducted from the per diem allowance.  Partial 

reimbursement may be made for departure and return days based on time.  Meals 

during in-state travel that are not an overnight stay will be reimbursed for actual cost 

not to exceed the GSA regulations.   

7. Vacation in Conjunction with Business Travel – In cases where vacation time is 

added to a business trip, any cost variance in airfare, car rental, lodging and/or any 

other expenses must be clearly identified on the Travel, Meal, and Lodging Expense 

Report form and paid by the traveler. 

8. Accompanied Travel – When a traveler is accompanied by others not on official 

business, any lodging, transportation, meals or other expenses above those incurred 

for the authorized traveler will not be reimbursed by the Library. 

9. Parking – Parking fees at a hotel/motel, conference center, or other site will be 

reimbursed only with a receipt. 

10. Entertainment Expenses - No employee or officer of the Library shall be 

reimbursed for any entertainment expense, unless ancillary to the purpose of the 

program, event or other official business.   

E. Approval of Expenses. 

1. Expenses for Members of the Library Board of Trustees. Travel, meal, and 

lodging expenses incurred by any member of the Library Board of Trustees must be 

approved by roll call vote at an open meeting of the Library Board of Trustees. 

2. Expenses for Officials or Employees Other than Members of the Library Board 

of Trustees. Travel, meal, and lodging expenses incurred by any official or employee 

not covered by paragraph 1 (member of the Library Board of Trustees) in excess of 

the [maximum dollar amount set by the Board or GSA rate or IRS rate] must be 

previously approved in an open meeting by a majority roll-call vote of the Library 

Board of Trustees. 

3. Advanced Expenses.  Travel, meal, and lodging expenses advanced as a per diem to 

any employee or official of the Library must be approved by roll call vote at an open 

meeting of the Library Board of Trustees prior to payment. Documentation of 

expenses must be provided in accordance with Sections C, D and F of this policy, and 

any excess from the per diem must be repaid. 

4. Other Expenses. All other expenses that do not fall within paragraphs E.1, E.2, or 

E.3 are subject to the Library Director’s approval. 

F. Documentation of Expenses. 



 

 

Before an expense for travel, meals, or lodging may be approved under Section E of this Policy, 

the following minimum documentation must first be submitted, in writing, to the Library 

Director on a Travel, Meal, and Lodging Expense form:   

1. an estimate of the cost of travel, meals, or lodging if expenses have not been incurred 

or a receipt for the travel, meals, or lodging if expenses have already been incurred;   

2. the name of the individual who received or is requesting the travel, meal, or lodging 

expense reimbursement;  

3. the job title or office of the individual who received or is requesting the travel, meal, 

or lodging expense reimbursement; and   

4. the date or dates and nature of the official business for which the travel, meal, or 

lodging expense was or will be expended.   

All documents and information submitted in connection with this Policy are public records 

subject to disclosure under the Freedom of Information Act.  

G. Travel, Meal, and Lodging Expense Report Form. 

The Library hereby adopts as its official standardized form for the submission of travel, meal, 

and lodging expenses the Travel, Meal, and Lodging Expense Report form attached hereto and 

incorporated herein as Attachment 1. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Attachment 1 

McHenry Public Library District 

TRAVEL, MEAL AND LODGING EXPENSE 

REIMBURSEMENT FORM 

 

Name of Official or Employee: __________________________________________________ 

 

Title/Position of Official or Employees: ___________________________________________ 

 

Name and Date of the Activity/Event: ____________________________________________ 

 

Check Number (if applicable): __________________________________________________ 

 

Credit Card Receipt Number (if applicable): _______________________________________ 

 

Description of the purpose of the expense: 

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________ 

 

Reimbursement Expense (Estimated Costs or Actual Costs with receipts, if applicable): 

 

Mileage:_____________________________________________________________________  

 

Meals: ______________________________________________________________________ 

 

Parking: _____________________________________________________________________ 

 

Hotel/Lodging:________________________________________________________________ 

 

Car rental: ___________________________________________________________________ 

 

Airfare: _____________________________________________________________________ 

 

Other Transportation (bus, train, taxi, car share, shuttle, etc):___________________________ 

 

Employee’s/Officer’s Signature:_______________________________________________ 

Date: ____________________ 

 

Library Director’s Authorization:________________________________________________ 

Date: ____________________ 

 

ATTACH ALL RECEIPTS 



 

 

 

McHenry Public Library District 

809 N. Front St. 

McHenry, IL  60050 

815.385.0036;  FAX 815.385.7085 

 

 

MEMO 

 

TO:  MPLD Board of Trustees 

FROM: Jim Scholtz, Executive Director, MPLD 

RE:  Bereavement Leave Policy Change 

DATE: 11-2-2016 

 

 

 

In compliance with the Illinois Child Bereavement Act of 2016, the MPLD staff policy manual is being 

updated to reflect those additions/changes with the following wording/policy.  The Executive Director and 

HR Generalist recommend the following policy to be considered: 

 

 
 
BEREAVEMENT LEAVE (see also types of leave such as FMLA, 
JURY DUTY/WITNESS, LEAVE OF ABSENCE); see also the 
Employee Benefits Summary (sick leave, personal leave, 
bereavement leave) 
 

In the event of a death in an employee’s immediate family, a bereavement leave of up to three 
(3) days, with regular pay, shall be granted.  For part-time workers, such leave will be calculated 
on a prorated basis as a percent of 37.5 hours per week.  Immediate family constitutes the 
following relationships:  spouse, partner, parent, child, sister, brother, grandparent, grandchild, 
mother/father-in law, and sister/brother-in-law.  Additionally, in compliance with the Illinois Child 
Bereavement Act of 2016, any staff member experiencing the death of a child may be allowed to 
take up to (7) seven additional unpaid work days; - note that 3 days bereavement is already 
included as standard bereavement.  This policy applies to an employee’s child who is biological, 
adopted, a foster child, step child or a child of a person standing “in loco parentis’ inclusive of 
domestic partner relationships.  Additional paid leave for the death of persons not covered 
in this policy as well as special exceptions/requests for extended leave due to special 
circumstances may be allowed at the discretion of the Executive Director.   Additionally, all 
leave must be approved by the employee’s immediate supervisor/manager before it is taken.  
See the Employee Benefits Summary for complete rules on requesting bereavement leave.   
 
GUIDELINES and PRACTICES for IMPLEMENTATION 
 
Note that, in the event of the death of a child, bereavement leave covers (3) three days with 
regular pay but an additional (7) seven days may be taken without pay (i.e. unpaid leave).  
However, the employee has the option of using accrued sick, personal and/or vacation (as well 



as a combination of the 3) to cover those 7 days or used in addition to those 7 days.  Also, 
FMLA (Family Leave and Medical Act) leave can simultaneously commence in situations such 
as this.  Normally, the Illinois Child Bereavement Act is in effect for employees working 24 hours 
per week or more and having a minimum of 1 year service, but the MPLD recognizes this law in 
effect for all of its employees regardless of time of service/hours worked.    
 
 
The MPLD Board of Trustees recommends that the wording of the Bereavement Leave above be added to 

the existing MPLD Staff Policy Manual. 

  

 

_____ Yes     ______No  ______ Not Present  _____ Abstain        __________________________ Date 



 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MCHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT 
MCHENRY COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

 
 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 
 
 

JUNE 30, 2016 
 
 

 
 



 

 

MCHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

JUNE 30, 2016 
 

 PAGE 
 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 1 
 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 
 Management’s Discussion and Analysis 3 
 
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 Government-Wide Financial Statements 
 
  Statement of Net Position 8 
 
  Statement of Activities 9 
 
 Fund Financial Statements 
 
  Balance Sheet – Governmental Funds 10 
 
  Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net 
   Position 11 
 
  Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund 
   Balances – Governmental Funds 12 
 
  Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, 
   and Changes in Fund Balances – Governmental Funds 
   to the Statement of Activities 13 
 
 Notes to Financial Statements 14 
 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 
 Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund – Schedule of Changes in the Employer’s 26 
           Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios 
 
 Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund – Schedule of Employer Contribution  27 
 
 Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance – 28 
  Budget and Actual – General Fund  
 
 Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance – 29 
  Budget and Actual – Special Revenue Fund – Grant and Gift Fund  
 
 Notes to Required Supplementary Information 30 
 
SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
 
 Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance – 
  Budget and Actual – Capital Projects Fund – Special Reserve Fund 31



 
 

Page 1 

 
  
 
 

 
   

 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 
 
 

Board of Trustees 
McHenry Public Library District 
McHenry, Illinois 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the 

 
MCHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT 

 
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise the Library’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of 
contents.   
 
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor's Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.  We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement.   
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control.  
Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting policies used, and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinions. 
 
 
 



 

Page 2 

Opinions 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of the McHenry Public Library District as of June 30, 2016, 
and the respective changes in financial position for the year then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management’s discussion and analysis, schedule of changes in the employer’s net pension 
liability, schedule of employer contribution, and budgetary comparison information on pages 3 
through 7 and 26 through 30 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for 
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical 
context.  We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which 
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the 
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic 
financial statements.  We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information 
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion 
or provide any assurance. 
 
Other Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the Library’s basic financial statements.  The supplemental information as 
listed in the table of contents, which is the responsibility of management, is presented for purposes 
of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.  Such information 
has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it. 
 
Change in Accounting Principle 
 
As discussed in Note 15 to the financial statements, the Library implemented GASB Statement 
No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application.  Our opinion is not modified with respect to this 
matter. 
 
                   

          

     EDER, CASELLA & CO. 
     Certified Public Accountants 
McHenry, Illinois 
November 3, 2016 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page 3 

MCHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT 
 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 

JUNE 30, 2016 
 

As management of McHenry Public Library District (Library), we offer readers of the Library’s statements 
this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Library for the fiscal year ended  
June 30, 2016.  

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

 The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the Library exceeded its liabilities and deferred 
inflows of resources at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $8,398,036 (net position).  
Unrestricted net position, which are assets that may be used to meet the Library’s ongoing 
obligations to citizens and creditors, are $1,532,541 at June 30, 2016. 

 The Library’s total net position increased by $4,583.  This consisted of a $26,648 decrease from 
current year activities and a $31,231 increase from a net position adjustment.  The net position 
adjustment is due to an alteration of the Library’s property tax receivable allowance. 

 As of the close of the current fiscal year, the Library’s governmental funds reported combined 
ending fund balances of $2,221,579, an increase of $107,160 in comparison with the prior year, of 
which, $31,231 is due to a fund balance adjustment.  Of this, $145,372 is nonspendable prepaid 
expenses, $2,180,997 is committed for capital project expenditures, and $(104,790) is available for 
spending at the Library’s discretion (unassigned fund balance). 

 At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was $(104,790). 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Library’s basic financial 
statements.  The Library’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide 
financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements.  This report 
also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves. 

Government-wide financial statements - The government-wide financial statements are designed to 
provide readers with a broad overview of the Library’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector 
business. 

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the Library’s assets and deferred outflows 
of resources, less its liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference reported as net 
position.  Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether 
the financial position of the Library is improving or deteriorating. 

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the Library’s net position changed during 
the most recent fiscal year.  All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event 
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and 
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal 
periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave). 

Both of the government-wide financial statements present functions of the Library that are principally 
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities).  The Library does not have 
any functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and 
charges (business-type activities).  The governmental activities of the Library include general government 
and library operations. The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 8 and 9 of this 
report. 



 

Page 4 

Fund financial statements - A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control 
over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives.  The Library, like other 
state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements.  All of the funds of the Library are governmental funds. 
 
Governmental funds - Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions 
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  However, unlike the 
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term 
inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available 
at the end of the fiscal year.  Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term 
financing requirements. 
 
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  By doing 
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the Library’s near-term financing decisions.  
Both the governmental fund Balance Sheet and the governmental fund Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison 
between governmental funds and governmental activities. 
 
The Library maintains three individual governmental funds.  Information is presented separately in the 
governmental fund Balance Sheet and in the governmental fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, 
and Changes in Fund Balances for the General Fund, Special Reserve Fund, and Grant and Gift Fund, 
all of which are considered to be major funds. 
   
The Library adopts an annual appropriated budget for the General Fund, Special Reserve Fund, and 
Grant and Gift Fund.  A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for each of these funds to 
demonstrate compliance with this budget.  
 
The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 10 through 13 of this report. 
 
Notes to the financial statements - The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to 
the financial statements can be found on pages 14 through 25 of this report. 
 
Other information - In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report 
also presents certain required supplementary information concerning the Library’s progress in meeting 
its obligation to provide as fully adequate as possible library services to its residents.  Required 
supplementary information can be found on pages 26 through 30 of this report. 
 
GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
 
As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial 
position.  In the case of the Library, assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and 
deferred inflows of resources by $8,398,036 at the close of the most recent fiscal year.  By far the largest 
portion of the Library’s net position reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, fine art, building, 
equipment and furnishings, and collection) less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still 
outstanding.  The Library uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these 
assets are not available for future spending.   
 
A condensed version of the Statement of Net Position at June 30, 2016 and 2015 follows: 
 



 

Page 5 

 

2016 2015
Assets

Current and Other Assets 5,511,058$       5,461,364$       
Capital Assets 6,865,494         6,817,262         

Total Assets 12,376,552$     12,278,626$     
Deferred Outflows of Resources
   Pension Expense/Revenue - IMRF 505,909$          264,268$          
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 505,909$          264,268$          

Liabilities
Long-Term Liabilities Outstanding 1,194,947$       802,496$          
Current Liabilities 140,628            166,299            

Total Liabilities 1,335,575$       968,795$          

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable Revenue - Property Taxes 3,148,852$       3,180,646$       

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 3,148,852$       3,180,646$       

Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets 6,865,494$       6,817,262$       
Unrestricted/(Deficit) 1,532,540         1,576,191         

Total Net Position 8,398,034$       8,393,453$       

Governmental Activities

McHenry Public Library District's Net Position

 
The balance of unrestricted net position, $1,532,541, may be used to meet the Library’s ongoing 
obligations to citizens and creditors. 
 
At the end of the current fiscal year, the Library is able to report positive balances in all categories of net 
position. 
 
The Library’s net position increased by $4,583 during the current fiscal year. 
 
Governmental activities - Governmental activities increased the Library’s net position by $4,583.  Key 
elements of this increase are as follows: 
 

  

2016 2015

Revenues

Program Revenues

Charges for Services 69,318$            70,795$            

Operating Grants and Contributions 68,903              62,549              

General Revenues

Property Taxes 3,173,228         3,190,158         

Impact Fees -                    220                   

Developer Fees 14,921              19,230              

Investment Earnings 1,481                1,788                

Gain (Loss) on Disposal of
  Capital Assets (24,235)             (22,856)             

Other 45,699              17,737              

Total Revenues 3,349,315$       3,339,621$       

Expenses

General Government 85,638$            79,484$            

Library Operations 3,290,327         2,985,590         

Total Expenses 3,375,965$       3,065,074$       

Increase/(Decrease) in Net Position (26,650)$           274,547$          

Net Position - Beginning 8,393,453         8,588,841         

Net Position Adjustment 31,231              (469,935)           

Net Position - Ending 8,398,034$       8,393,453$       

Governmental Activities
McHenry Public Library District's Change in Net Position

 



 

Page 6 

Total revenues increased $9,694 from the prior year, which is consistent with the prior year. 
 
Total expenses increased $310,889 from the prior year, which was mainly attributable to the increases 
in Personnel Expense of $119,352, Capital Outlay of $90,258, and IMRF – Pension Expense of $133,715. 
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE LIBRARY’S FUNDS 
 
As noted earlier, the Library uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements.  
 
Governmental funds - The focus of the Library’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-
term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources.  Such information is useful in assessing 
the Library’s financing requirements.  In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful 
measure of the Library’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 
 
As of the end of the current fiscal year, the Library’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund 
balances of $2,221,579. 
 
The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the Library.  At the end of the current fiscal year, 
unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was $(104,790).  The total fund balance of the Library’s 
General Fund increased by $83,572 during the current fiscal year.  This increase is primarily due to a 
$52,342 increase in current year activities and a $31,231 fund balance adjustment. 
 
The Special Reserve Fund has a total fund balance of $1,747,456. The net increase in fund balance 
during the current year in the Special Reserve Fund was $15,581. 
 
The Grant and Gift Fund has a total fund balance of $437,714.  The net increase in fund balance during 
the current year in the Grant and Gift Fund was $8,006. 
 
GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 
 
The Library did not amend its budget for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016; therefore, the amounts 
shown as original and final budget are the same.  
 
Significant differences between the budget and the actual revenues and expenditures are summarized 
as follows: 
 

 The difference between the estimated revenues and the actual revenues was $54,565 (unfavorable) 
and was primarily attributable to less than expected fines, interest, and other income. 
 

 The difference between the estimated expenditures and the actual expenditures was $615,311 
(favorable), and was primarily attributable to less than expected salaries, professional services, and 
capital outlay. 

 
CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 
 
Capital assets - The Library’s investment in capital assets for its governmental activities as of 
June 30, 2016 amounts to $6,865,495 (net of accumulated depreciation).  This investment in capital 
assets includes land, parking lot, fine art, building, landscaping, equipment and furnishings, and 
collection. The total increase in the Library’s investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year was 
$48,233. 
 
The following are significant capital assets for the years ended June 30, 2016: 
 

 Network Switch Project - $49,319 
 

 LED Lighting Upgrade - $28,720 
 

The following table presents a summary of capital assets for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015: 



 

Page 7 

 

2016 2015

Land 1,245,836$           1,245,836$           

Fine Art 18,600                  18,600                  

Parking Lot 272,998 290,505                

Building 3,102,865 3,180,025

Landscaping 10,813 11,546

Equipment and Furnishings 540,921 504,346

Collection 1,673,462 1,566,404

  Total 6,865,495$           6,817,262$           

McHenry Public Library District's Capital Assets

Governmental Activities
(net of depreciation)

 
Additional information on the Library’s capital assets can be found in note 4 on page 19 of this report. 
 
ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES 
 
The equalized assessed valuation (EAV) for the Library for 2015 is $833,320,832.  This represents an 
EAV increase of $4,947,671 (0.6%) from the prior year. This increase will affect the calculation of the 
Library’s property tax revenue and was considered in preparing the Library’s budget for the 2017 fiscal 
year. 
 
Next year’s budget (fiscal year 2016/17) tax revenue is expected to be higher than the previous year with 
a upward trend in EAV (see above) and is expected to continue to increase for the next year budget 
cycle.  Next year’s budgeted expenses are expected to increase in regards to capital outlay expenditures 
due to a sewer lift, RFID and solar array projects scheduled to begin in the fiscal year. 
 
REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION 
 
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of McHenry Public Library District’s 
finances for all those with an interest in the Library’s finances.  Questions concerning any of the 
information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to 
the Executive Director, McHenry Public Library District, 809 North Front Street, McHenry, IL  60050-5578. 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Governmental
Activities

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents 3,817,372$          
Property Taxes Receivable, Net of Allowance of $31,800 1,540,797            
Developer Donations Receivable, Net of Allowance of $0 3,123                   
Other Receivables 4,395                   
Prepaid Items 145,371               
Capital Assets (Note 4)

Land 1,245,836            
Fine Art 18,600                 
Depreciable Building, Equipment and Furnishings, and

Collection, Net of Depreciation 5,601,058            

Total Assets 12,376,552$        

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
   Pension Expense/Revenue - IMRF 505,909$             

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 505,909$             

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable 14,581$               
Accrued Payroll 87,185                 
Accrued Payroll Taxes 6,469                   
Unearned Revenue -  Grant 32,393                 
Compensated Absences 43,385

   Net Pension Liability - IMRF 1,151,562

Total Liabilities 1,335,575$          

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable Revenue - Property Taxes 3,148,852$          

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 3,148,852$          

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 6,865,494$          
Unrestricted/(Deficit) 1,532,540            

Total Net Position 8,398,034$          

JUNE 30, 2016

MCHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Page 8
The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.



Net (Expense)
Revenue and

Operating
Charges For Grants and Governmental

Expenses Services Contributions Activities
Functions/Programs

Governmental Activities
General Government 85,638$           -$                 -$                 (85,638)$        
Library Operations 3,290,327 69,318             68,903             (3,152,106)     

3,375,965$      69,318$           68,903$           (3,237,744)$   

General Revenues
Taxes

Property Taxes 3,173,228$    
Developer Fees 14,921           
Unrestricted Investment Earnings 1,481             
Gain/(Loss) on Disposal of Capital Assets (24,235)          
Other Income 45,699           

Total General Revenues 3,211,094$    

Change in Net Position (26,650)$        

Net Position - Beginning of Year 8,393,453

Net Position Adjustment (Note 14) 31,231           

Net Position - End of Year 8,398,034$    

Program Revenues
Changes in
Net Position

MCHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT
GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Page 9
The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.



Total
General Special Reserve Grant and Gift Governmental

Fund Fund Fund Funds
ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,607,105$        1,744,333$        465,934$           3,817,372$        
Property Taxes Receivable, Net of 

Allowance of $31,800 1,540,797          -                    -                    1,540,797          
Developer Donations Receivable, Net

of Allowance of $0 -                    3,123                 -                    3,123                 
Other Receivables 4,395                 -                    -                    4,395                 
Prepaid Items 141,198 -                    4,173                 145,371             

Total Assets 3,293,495$        1,747,456$        470,107$           5,511,058$        

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable 14,581$             -$                  -$                  14,581$             
Accrued Payroll 87,185 -                    -                    87,185               
Accrued Payroll Taxes 6,469 -                    -                    6,469                 
Unearned Revenue - Grant -                    -                    32,393               32,393               

Total Liabilities 108,235$           -$                  32,393$             140,628$           

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable Revenue - Property Taxes 3,148,852$        -$                  -$                  3,148,852$        

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 3,148,852$        -$                  -$                  3,148,852$        

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable

Prepaid Items 141,198$           -$                  4,173$               145,371$           
Committed

Capital Projects -                    1,747,456          433,541             2,180,997          
Unassigned (104,790)           -                    -                    (104,790)           

Total Fund Balance 36,408$             1,747,456$        437,714$           2,221,578$        

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of

Resources, and Fund Balances 3,293,495$        1,747,456$        470,107$           5,511,058$        

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

MCHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Page 10
The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.



Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds 2,221,578$     

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of 
Net Position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Capital Assets 10,105,593$   
Less:  Accumulated Depreciation (3,240,099)      

6,865,494       
Deferred pension costs in governmental activities are not financial 
 resources and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Pension Expense/Revenue - IMRF 505,909          

Some liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and
therefore are not reported in the funds.

Compensated Absences (43,385)$         
Net Pension Liability - IMRF (1,151,562)      

(1,194,947)      

Net Position of Governmental Activities 8,398,034$    

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

MCHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Page 11
The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.



Total
General Special Reserve Grant and Gift Governmental

Fund Fund Fund Funds
REVENUES

Property Taxes 3,173,228$       -$                  -$                  3,173,228$       
Developer Fees -                    14,921              -                    14,921              
Fines 44,508              -                    -                    44,508              
Interest 635                   660                   186                   1,481                
Photocopier Income 16,120              -                    -                    16,120              
Program Fees/Miscellaneous Fees 3,453                -                    -                    3,453                
Staff Cobra/Insurance Payments 12,572              -                    -                    12,572              
Meeting Room Fees 950                   -                    -                    950                   
Lost or Damaged Materials 3,971                -                    -                    3,971                
Dividends 371                   -                    -                    371                   
Collection Agency Fees 316                   -                    -                    316                   
Insurance Reimbursement 21,599              -                    -                    21,599              
Other Income 11,157              -                    -                    11,157              
Gifts and Donations -                    -                    16,374              16,374              
Per Capita Grant -                    -                    52,529              52,529              

3,288,880$       15,581$            69,089$            3,373,550$       

EXPENDITURES
Current

General Government 85,638$            -$                  -$                  85,638$            
Library Operations 2,484,087         -                    61,083              2,545,170         

Capital Outlay 666,814            -                    -                    666,814            

3,236,539$       -$                  61,083$            3,297,622$       

EXCESS OR (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 52,341$            15,581$            8,006$              75,928$            

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 52,341$            15,581$            8,006$              75,928$            

FUND BALANCES - JULY 1, 2015 (47,164)             1,731,875         429,708            2,114,419         

FUND BALANCE ADJUSTMENT (Note 14) 31,231              -                    -                    31,231              

FUND BALANCES - JUNE 30, 2016 36,408$            1,747,456$       437,714$          2,221,578$       

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

MCHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Page 12
The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.



Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds 75,928$          

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of 
Activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.
However, in the Statement of Activities the cost of these assets
is depreciated over their estimated useful lives and reported as
depreciation expense.  This is the amount by which capital outlay
exceeds depreciation expense in the current period.

Capital Outlays 601,867$        
Depreciation Expense (529,399)         

72,468            

Some expenses in the Statement of Activities do not require the use
of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as
expenditures in governmental funds.

Gain/(Loss) on the Disposal of Capital Assets (24,235)$         
Compensated Absences (3,409)
Pension Expense (322,760)

(350,404)         

Employer Pension Contributions are expensed in the fund financial statements
  but treated as a reduction in the Net Pension Liability on the government-wide

financial statements. 175,358          

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities (26,650)$        

MCHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Page 13
The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.



 

Page 14 

MCHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2016 
 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

McHenry Public Library District (Library) is a public library organized under Chapter 75 of the 
Illinois Compiled Statutes.  It operates under the direction of a Board of Trustees, which has 
responsibility and control over all activities related to the Library within the district, and 
provides library facilities in an area generally defined by the City of McHenry.  
 
The Library’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to local governmental units.  The Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing 
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.  The most significant accounting 
principles used by the Library are discussed below. 
 
A. Reporting Entity 
 

The accompanying financial statements comply with the provisions of GASB Statement 
No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, in that the financial statements include all 
organizations, activities, and functions that comprise the Library.  Component units are 
legally separate entities for which the Library (the primary entity) is financially 
accountable.  Financial accountability is defined as the ability to appoint a voting majority 
of the organization’s governing body and either (1) the Library’s ability to impose its will 
over the organization or (2) the potential that the organization will provide a financial 
benefit to, or impose a financial burden on, the Library.  Using these criteria, the Library 
has no component units.  In addition, the Library is not included as a component unit in 
any other governmental reporting entity as defined by GASB pronouncements. 

 
B. Basic Financial Statements – Government-Wide Financial Statements 

 
The Library’s basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the 
Library as a whole) and fund (reporting the Library’s major funds) financial statements.  
Both the government-wide and fund financial statements categorize all of the primary 
activities of the Library as governmental activities.  The Library does not have any 
business-type activities. 
 
In the government-wide Statement of Net Position, the governmental activities column 
is presented on a consolidated basis, and is reported on a full accrual, economic 
resource basis, which recognizes all long-term assets and receivables as well as long- 
term debt and obligations.  The Library’s net position is reported in three parts – net 
investment in capital assets; restricted net position; and unrestricted net position.  The 
Library first utilizes restricted resources to finance qualifying activities. 
 
The government-wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net cost of each 
of the Library’s functions.  The functions are also supported by general government 
revenues (property taxes, personal property replacement taxes, unassigned investment 
earnings, other income, etc.).  The Statement of Activities reduces gross expenses 
(including depreciation) by related program revenues and operating grants.  Program 
revenues must be directly associated with the function (general government and library 
operations).  Operating grants include operating specific grants and discretionary (either 
operating or capital) grants while the capital grants column reflects capital specific 
grants.  The Library received no capital grants during the year ended June 30, 2016. 



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

Page 15 

 
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

 
B.    Basic Financial Statements – Government-Wide Financial Statements (Continued) 

 
The net costs (by function) are normally covered by general revenues (property taxes, 
personal property replacement taxes, unassigned investment earnings, other 
income, etc.). 
 
The Library does not allocate indirect costs. 
 
The government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the Library as an entity and 
the change in the Library’s net position resulting from the current year’s activities. 
 

C.    Basic Financial Statements – Fund Financial Statements 
  

The financial transactions of the Library are reported in individual funds in the fund 
financial statements.  Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-
balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues and 
expenditures/expenses.  The various funds are reported by generic classification within 
the financial statements. 
 
The emphasis in fund financial statements is on the major funds.  GASB Statement 
No. 34 sets forth minimum criteria (percentage of the assets, liabilities, revenues and 
expenditures of all governmental funds) for the determination of major funds.  The 
Library electively made all funds major. 
 
The following fund types are used by the Library: 
  
Governmental Funds 
 
The focus of the governmental funds’ measurement (in the fund statements) is upon 
determination of financial position and changes in financial position (sources, uses and 
balances of financial resources) rather than upon net income.  The following is a 
description of the governmental funds of the Library: 

 
General Fund – The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Library.  It 
is used to account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted 
for in another fund.   

Grant and Gift Fund – The Grant and Gift Fund is a special revenue fund used to 
account for the proceeds from specific revenue sources that are designated for 
specific purposes.   

Special Reserve Fund – The Special Reserve Fund is a capital projects fund used 
to account for the accumulation of funds to be used for building or land acquisition, 
building expansion, and/or to furnish and equip a library building.   

 
D. Basis of Accounting 

 
Basis of accounting refers to the point at which revenues or expenditures/expenses are 
recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements.  It relates to the 
timing of the measurements made regardless of the measurement focus applied. 

 
1. Accrual 

 
The governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements are 
presented on the accrual basis of accounting.  Property tax revenues are 
recognized in the period for which levied.  Other nonexchange revenues, including 



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

Page 16 

 
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
  D. Basis of Accounting (Continued) 
 

1. Accrual (Continued) 
 

governmental revenues and grants, are reported when all eligibility requirements 
are met.  Fees and charges and other exchange revenues are recognized when 
earned and expenses are recognized when incurred. 
 

2. Modified Accrual 
 

The governmental funds’ financial statements are presented on the modified 
accrual basis of accounting.  Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, 
revenues are recorded when susceptible to accrual; i.e., both measurable and 
available.  “Available” means collectible within the current period or within 60 days 
after year-end.  Property tax revenues are recognized in the period for which levied 
provided they are also available.  Intergovernmental revenues and grants are 
recognized when all eligibility requirements are met and the revenues are 
available.  Expenditures are recognized when the related liability is incurred.  The 
exception to this general rule is that principal and interest on general obligation 
long-term debt, if any, is recognized when due. 

 
  E. Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 

Separate bank accounts are not maintained for all Library funds.  Instead, the funds 
maintain their cash balances in a money market account, with accounting records being 
maintained to show the portion of the common bank account balance attributable to each 
participating fund. 
 
No Library fund had a cash overdraft at June 30, 2016. 
 
Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and 
short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of 
acquisition. 

 
F. Prepaid Items 

 
Certain payments to vendors that reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods 
are recorded as prepaid items in both the government-wide and fund financial 
statements. 

 
  G. Capital Assets 

 
Capital assets purchased or acquired with an original cost of $1,000 or more are 
reported at historical cost or estimated historical cost.  Contributed assets are reported 
at fair market value as of the date of donation.  Additions, improvements, and other 
capital outlays that significantly extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized. 
 
Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred.  
  
Depreciation on all assets is provided on a straight-line basis over the following 
estimated useful lives:    
   

                                     

Building 10-50 years

Equipment & Furnishings 5-20 years

Collection 4-10 years  



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

Page 17 

 
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

   
  H. Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources 
 

In addition to assets and liabilities, the Balance Sheet and Statement of Net Position will 
sometimes report separate sections for deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources.  Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net 
position that applies to a future period and, therefore, will not be recognized as an 
outflow of resource until then.  Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of 
net position that applies to a future period and, therefore, will not be recognized as an 
inflow of resource until that time. 

 
I. Compensated Absences 

 
The Library accrues accumulated unpaid vacation and personal leave when earned by 
the employee. 
 

J. Governmental Fund Balances 
 
Governmental fund balances are divided between nonspendable and spendable. 
  
Nonspendable fund balances are balances that cannot be spent because they are not 
expected to be converted to cash, or they are legally or contractually required to remain 
intact.   
 
The spendable fund balances are arranged in a hierarchy based on spending 
constraints. 
 
 Restricted – Restricted fund balances are restricted when constraints are placed 

on the use by either (a) external creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or 
regulations of other governments or (b) law through constitutional provisions or 
enabling legislation. 
 

 Committed – Committed fund balances are amounts that can only be used for 
specific purposes as a result of constraints of the Board of Trustees.  Committed 
amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the Board of Trustees 
removes those constraints by taking the same type of action (e.g. legislation, 
resolution, ordinance).  Committed fund balances differ from restricted balances 
because the constraints on their use do not come from outside parties, 
constitutional provisions, or enabling legislation. 

 
 Assigned – Assigned fund balances are amounts that are constrained by the 

Library’s intent to be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor 
committed.  Intent is expressed by an appointed body (e.g. a budget or finance 
committee) or official to which the Board of Trustees has delegated the authority 
to assign, modify, or rescind amounts to be used for specific purposes. Pursuant 
to resolution 2010/2011-3 by the Board of Trustees, the Executive Director has 
been delegated this authority.   
 
Assigned fund balances also include (a) all remaining amounts that are reported 
in governmental funds (other than the General Fund) that are not classified as 
nonspendable, restricted, or committed, and (b) amounts in the General Fund that 
are intended to be used for a specific purpose.  Specific amounts that are not 
restricted or committed in a special revenue, capital projects, or debt service fund 
are assigned for purposes in accordance with the nature of their fund type.   



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

Page 18 

 
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

 
J. Governmental Fund Balances (Continued) 

 
 Assigned (Continued) 

 
Assignment within the General Fund conveys that the intended use of those 
amounts is for a specific purpose that is narrower than the general purpose of the 
Library itself. 

 
 Unassigned – Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the 

General Fund.  This classification represents the General Fund balance that has 
not been assigned to other funds, and that has not been restricted, committed, or 
assigned to specific purposes within the General Fund. 

 
The Library permits funds to be expended in the following order: Restricted, Committed, 
Assigned, and Unassigned. 

 
K. Property Tax Revenue 

 
The Library’s property tax is levied each calendar year on all taxable real property 
located in the Library’s district on or before the last Tuesday in December.  The 2015 
levy was passed by the Board on October 20, 2015 and revised on December 15, 2015.  
Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1 of the calendar 
year they are for and are payable in two installments early in June and early in 
September of the following calendar year.  The Library receives significant distributions 
of tax receipts approximately one month after these dates.   
 

L. Expenditures 
 

Expenditures are recognized when the related fund liability is incurred.  Expendable 
supplies held for the Library’s use are reported as expense in the period when 
purchased, rather than in the period when used. 

 
M. Estimates 

 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes.  Actual results 
may differ from those estimates. 

 
NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS 
 

The Library is allowed to invest in securities as authorized by the Illinois Compiled Statutes, 
Chapter 30, Sections 235/2 and 235/6. 

 
Deposits 
 
Custodial Credit Risk.  Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the 
Library’s deposits may not be returned to it.  The Library’s policy is to have deposits secured 
by collateral valued at market or par, whichever is lower, less the amount of the Federal 
Deposit Insurance Corporation insurance (FDIC).  The Library’s Board of Trustees approves 
and designates authorized depository institutions.  As of June 30, 2016, none of the Library’s 
bank balance of $3,889,915 was exposed to custodial credit risk. 

 



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

Page 19 

 
NOTE 2 – DEPOSITS (Continued) 

 
Credit Risk.  State law limits investments based on credit risk.  As of June 30, 2016, the 
Library’s investments were rated as follows: 
 

    

Investment Credit Rating Rating Source
State Investment Pool AAAm Standard and Poor's

 
 
NOTE 3 -   FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT 
   

The Library categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established 
by generally accepted accounting principles.  The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs 
used to measure the fair value of the asset.  Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets 
for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are 
significant unobservable inputs. 

 
  The Library has the following recurring fair value measurements as of June 30, 2016: 
  

o State Investment Pools of $2,890 are valued using quoted market prices (Level 1 Inputs) 
 
NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
  Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2016 was as follows: 
 

Balance Balance

July 1, 2015 Increases Decreases June 30, 2016

Governmental Activities:

 Capital Assets not being depreciated:

  Land 1,245,836$       -$                  -$                  1,245,836$       
  Fine Art 18,600              -                    -                    18,600              

 Total Capital Assets not being depreciated 1,264,436$       -$                  -$                  1,264,436$       

 Other Capital Assets:

  Building 4,260,123$       32,553$            -$                  4,292,676$       

  Parking Lot 350,141            -                    -                    350,141            

  Landscaping 14,653 -                    -                    14,653              

  Equipment and Furnishings 1,166,197 139,145            11,145              1,294,197         

  Collection 2,853,530 430,169            394,209            2,889,490         

 Total Other Capital Assets at

  Historical Cost 8,644,644$       601,867$          405,354$          8,841,157$       

 Less Accumulated Depreciation for:

  Building 1,080,098$       109,714$          -$                  1,189,812$       

  Parking Lot 59,636              17,507              -                    77,143              

  Landscaping 3,107                733                   -                    3,840                

  Equipment and Furnishings 661,851            102,570            11,145              753,276            

  Collection 1,287,126         298,875            369,973            1,216,028         

 Total Accumulated Depreciation 3,091,818$       529,399$          381,118$          3,240,099$       

 Other Capital Assets, Net 5,552,826$       72,468$            24,236$            5,601,058$       

Governmental Activities Capital Assets, Net 6,817,262$       72,468$            24,236$            6,865,494$       

 
Depreciation expense charged to library operations was $529,399 for the year ended 
June 30, 2016.  
   

 
 



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

Page 20 

 
NOTE 5 -  COMPENSATED ABSENCES 
 
  Compensated absences for the year ended June 30, 2016 were as follows: 
 

Balance Balance

July 1, 2015 Additions Retirements June 30, 2016

Governmental Activities:

  Compensated Absences 39,976$           3,409$             -$                43,385$           

 
  
NOTE 6 - DEFICIT FUND BALANCE 
 
  For the year ended June 30, 2016, no funds had a deficit fund balance. 
 
NOTE 7 - PROPERTY TAXES  
 

Property taxes receivable and unavailable revenue recorded in these financial statements 
are from the 2015 tax levy.  The unavailable revenue is 100% of the 2015 tax levy.  These 
taxes are unavailable as only a portion of the taxes (approximately 50%) are collected before 
the end of the fiscal year and the Library does not consider the amounts to be available and 
does not budget for their use in fiscal year 2016.  The Library has determined that 100% of 
the amounts collected for the 2014 levy are allocable for use in fiscal year 2016.  Therefore, 
100% of the amounts collected for the 2014 levy ($3,173,228) are recorded in these financial 
statements as property taxes revenue. A summary of the assessed valuations and 
extensions for tax years 2015, 2014, and 2013 are as follows: 

 

 

Assessed Valuation

Rate Extension Rate Extension Rate Extension

General 0.3817 3,180,652$      0.3840 3,180,646$      0.3673 3,180,645$      

2015

$833,320,832 $828,373,161

2014 2013

$865,952,997

 
NOTE 8 - OVEREXPENDITURE OF BUDGET 

 

  For the year ended June 30, 2016, no fund had expenditures that exceeded the budget. 
 

NOTE 9 - RETIREMENT FUND COMMITMENTS 
 

A. Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund 
 

 Plan Description 
The Library’s defined benefit pension plan for Regular employees provides 
retirement and disability benefits, post retirement increases, and death benefits to 
plan members and beneficiaries.  The Library’s plan is managed by the Illinois 
Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF), the administrator of a multi-employer public 
pension fund.  A summary of IMRF’s pension benefits is provided in the “Benefits 
Provided” section of this document. Details of all benefits are available from IMRF. 
Benefit provisions are established by statute and may only be changed by the 
General Assembly of the State of Illinois.  IMRF issues a publicly available 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report that includes financial statements, 
detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position, and required 
supplementary information.  That report may be obtained on-line at www.imrf.org. 

    
 Benefits Provided 

IMRF has three benefit plans. The vast majority of IMRF members participate in 
the Regular Plan (RP). The Sheriff’s Law Enforcement Personnel (SLEP) plan is 
for sheriffs, deputy sheriffs, and selected police chiefs. Counties could adopt the 
Elected County Official (ECO) plan for officials elected prior to August 8, 2011 (the 
ECO plan was closed to new participants after that date).



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

Page 21 

 
NOTE 9 - RETIREMENT FUND COMMITMENTS (Continued) 
 

A. Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (Continued) 
 

 Benefits Provided (Continued) 
All three IMRF benefit plans have two tiers. Employees hired before 
January 1, 2011 are eligible for Tier 1 benefits. Tier 1 employees are vested for 
pension benefits when they have at least eight years of qualifying service credit. 
Tier 1 employees who retire at age 55 (at reduced benefits) or after age 60 (at full 
benefits) with eight years of service are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, 
payable monthly for life, in an amount equal to 1-2/3% of the final rate of earnings 
for the first 15 years of service credit, plus 2% for each year of service credit after 
15 years to a maximum of 75% of their final rate of earnings. Final rate of earnings 
is the highest total earnings during any consecutive 48 months within the last ten 
years of service, divided by 48. Under Tier 1, the pension is increased by 3% of 
the original amount on January 1 every year after retirement. 
 
Employees hired on or after January 1, 2011 are eligible for Tier 2 benefits. For 
Tier 2 employees, pension benefits vest after ten years of service. Participating 
employees who retire at age 62 (at reduced benefits) or after age 67 (at full 
benefits) with ten years of service are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, 
payable monthly for life, in an amount equal to 1-2/3% of the final rate of earnings 
for the first 15 years of service credit, plus 2% for each year of service credit after 
15 years to a maximum of 75% of their final rate of earnings. Final rate of earnings 
is the highest total earnings during any 96 consecutive months within the last ten 
years of service, divided by 96. Under Tier 2, the pension is increased on January 
1 every year after retirement, upon reaching age 67, by the lesser of: 
 
 3% of the original pension amount, or  
 1/2 of the increase in the Consumer Price Index of the original pension 

amount.  
 

 Employees Covered by Benefit Terms 
All appointed employees of a participating employer who are employed in a 
position normally requiring 600 hours (1,000 hours for certain employees hired 
after 1981) or more of work in a year are required to participate.  As of 
December 31, 2015, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms: 

 
Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 17

Inactive plan members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 23

Active plan members 39

Total 79

 
 Contributions 

As set by statute, the Library’s Regular Plan Members are required to contribute 
4.5% of their annual covered salary. The statute requires employers to contribute 
the amount necessary, in addition to member contributions, to finance the 
retirement coverage of its own employees. The Library’s annual contribution rate 
for calendar year 2015 was 11.66%. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, the 
Library contributed $175,357 to the Plan. The Library also contributes for disability 
benefits, death benefits, and supplemental retirement benefits, all of which are 
pooled at the IMRF level. Contribution rates for disability and death benefits are 
set by IMRF’s Board of Trustees, while the supplemental retirement benefits rate 
is set by statute. 



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

Page 22 

 
NOTE 9 - RETIREMENT FUND COMMITMENTS (Continued) 
 

A. Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (Continued) 
 

 Net Pension Liability 
The components of the net pension liability of the IMRF as of December 31, 2015, 
calculated in accordance with GASB Statement No. 68, were as follows: 
 

                  

Total Pension Liability 4,941,352$       

IMRF Fiduciary Net Position 3,789,790         

Library's Net Pension Liability 1,151,562$       

IMRF Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage

of the Total Pension Liability 76.70%  
 

See the Schedule of Changes in the Employer’s Net Pension Liability and Related 
Ratios in the Required Supplementary Information following the notes to the 
financial statements for additional information related to the funded status of the 
Plan. 

    
 Actuarial Assumptions 

The total pension liability above was determined by an actuarial valuation 
performed as of December 31, 2015 using the following actuarial methods and 
assumptions. 
 

Assumptions

  Inflation 3.50%

  Price Inflation 2.75%

  Salary Increases 3.75% - 14.50% including inflation

  Interest Rate 7.47%

Asset Valuation Method Market Value of Assets

Projected Retirement Age

Experience-based table of rates that 
are specific to the type of eligibility 
condition.  Last updated for the 2014 
valuation according to an experience 
study from years 2011 to 2013.

 
The IMRF-specific rates for Mortality (for non-disabled retirees) were developed 
from the RP-2014 Blue Collar Health Annuitant Mortality Table with adjustments 
to match current IMRF experience. For Disabled Retirees, an IMRF-specific 
mortality table was used with fully generational projection scale MP-2014 (base 
year 2014). The IMRF-specific rates were developed from the RP-2014 Disabled 
Retirees Mortality Table, applying the same adjustments that were applied for non-
disabled lives.  For active members, an IMRF-specific mortality table was used 
with fully generational projection scale MP-2014 (base year 2014). The IMRF-
specific rates were developed from the RP-2014 Employee Mortality Table with 
adjustments to match current IMRF experience. 

 
 Long-Term Expected Rate of Return 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was 
determined using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of 
expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan 
investment expense, and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. 
These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by 
weighting the expected future real rates of return to the target asset allocation 
percentage and adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates 
of geometric real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the 
following table: 



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

Page 23 

 
NOTE 9 - RETIREMENT FUND COMMITMENTS (Continued) 

 
A. Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (Continued) 

 
 Long-Term Expected Rate of Return (Continued) 

 

      

Target Projected 

Asset Class Allocation Return

Equities 38.0% 7.39%

International Equities 17.0% 7.59%

Fixed Income 27.0% 3.00%

Real Estate 8.0% 6.00%

Alternatives 9.0%

  Private Equity 8.15%

  Hedge Funds 5.25%

  Commodities 2.75%

Cash 1.0% 2.25%

100.0%

 
 Single Discount Rate 

The projection of cash flow used to determine this Single Discount Rate assumed 
that the Plan members’ contributions will be made at the current contribution rate, 
and that employer contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference 
between actuarially determined contribution rates and the member rate. The Single 
Discount Rate reflects: 
 

1. The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments (during 
the period in which the fiduciary net position is projected to be sufficient to 
pay benefits), and  

2. The tax-exempt municipal bond rate based on an index of 20-year general 
obligation bonds with an average AA credit rating (which is published by 
the Federal Reserve) as of the measurement date (to the extent that the 
contributions for use with the long-term expected rate of return are not met).  

 
For the purpose of this discount rate, the expected rate of return on pension plan 
investments is 7.50%; the municipal bond rate is 3.57%; and resulting single 
discount rate is 7.47%. 

 
 Discount Rate Sensitivity 

The following is a sensitive analysis of the net pension liability to changes in the 
discount rate. The table below presents the pension liability of the Library 
calculated using the discount rate of 7.47% as well as what the Library’s net 
pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-
percentage-point lower (6.47%) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.47%) than the 
current rate: 
 

       

Current

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase

6.47% 7.47% 8.47%

Net Pension Liability 1,895,747$     1,151,562$     541,792$      

 
 Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows 

of Resources Related to Pensions 
For the year ended June 30, 2016, the Library recognized pension expense of 
$322,758. At June 30, 2016, the Library reported deferred outflows of resources 
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources: 



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

Page 24 

 
NOTE 9 - RETIREMENT FUND COMMITMENTS (Continued) 

 
A. Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (Continued) 

 
 Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows 

of Resources Related to Pensions (Continued) 
 

Outflows Inflows Net Outflows

Expense in Future Periods of Resources of Resources of Resources

   Differences between expected

     and actual experience 72,060$          9,940$            62,120$          

   Assumption changes 119,471          -                  119,471          

   Net difference between projected

     and actual earnings on pension

     investments 237,547          -                  237,547          

Total deferred amounts to be recognized

   in pension expense in future periods 429,078$        9,940$            419,138$        

Pension contributions made subsequent

   to the measurement date 86,771            -                  86,771            

Total deferred amounts related to pensions 515,849$        9,940$            505,909$        

 
Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 
 

                                       

Net Deferred

Year Ending Outflows of

December 31 Resources

2016 117,982$         

2017 117,982           

2018 113,774           

2019 69,400             

2020 -                  

Thereafter -                  

419,138$         

 
B. Social Security 
 

Employees not qualifying for coverage under the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund are 
considered “non-participating employees.”  These employees and those qualifying for 
coverage under the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund are covered under social security.  
The Library paid the total required contribution for the current fiscal year. 

 
NOTE 10 - INTERFUND TRANSFERS 
 

There were no interfund transfers made during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2016. 
 
NOTE 11 -   OPERATING LEASE 
   

The Library entered into an operating lease with Today’s Business Solutions, Inc. for printing 
software and three towers. The total amount to be paid during this five year lease is $16,102.  
The lease did not begin until August 5, 2016 and, therefore, no payments were made during 
fiscal year 2016. 



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

Page 25 

 
NOTE 11 – OPERATING LEASE (Continued) 
 

Annual requirements to cover outstanding lease agreements at June 30, 2016 are: 
 

    

Year Ending June 30 Total Payments
2017 2,952$              
2018 3,220                
2019 3,220                
2020 3,221                
2021 3,221                

2022-2026 268                   
16,102$           

 
 
NOTE 12 - RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

The Library is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and 
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. 

 
The Library purchases commercial insurance to handle these risks of loss.  During fiscal 
year 2016, there was no significant reduction in insurance coverage for any category.  
Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage 
in any of the past three fiscal years. 

 
The Library is insured under a retrospectively-rated policy for workers’ compensation 
coverage.  Whereas, the initial premium may be adjusted based on actual experience.  
Adjustments in premiums are recorded when paid or received.  During the year ended 
June 30, 2016, there were no significant adjustments in premiums based on actual 
experience. 

 
NOTE 13 -  CONTINGENCIES 
 

The Library is not aware of any pending litigation or potential nondisclosed liabilities that 
management believes would have a material effect on the financial statements. 
 

NOTE 14 -   NET POSITION/FUND BALANCE ADJUSTMENT 
 

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, the Library’s General Fund Net Position and 
Fund Balance was increased by $31,231 as a result of a prior year misstatement of the 
property tax receivable allowance account. 

 
NOTE 15 -   CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE  

 
Effective for the year ended June 30, 2016, the Library has implemented GASB Statement 
No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application.  This Statement further clarifies how the 
fair value is determined for assets and liabilities.  The Statement also requires additional 
disclosures about the fair value measurement of the investments held by the Library (see 
Note 3). 

 
 
 
 

 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



6/30/2016 * 6/30/2015 *
TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY
  Service Cost 167,731$        169,550$        
  Interest 335,182          295,518          
  Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience 90,749            (16,836)          
  Changes in Assumptions 6,836              193,145          
  Benefit Payments, Including Refunds of Member Contributions (112,637)        (97,231)          
Net Change in Total Pension Liability 487,861$        544,146$        

Total Pension Liability - Beginning 4,453,491       3,909,345       

Total Pension Liability - Ending 4,941,352$     4,453,491$     

PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
  Contributions - Employer 174,334$        156,868$        
  Contributions - Employee 79,434            64,762            
  Net Investment Income 18,808            208,603          
  Benefit Payments, Including Refunds of Member Contributions (112,637)        (97,231)          
  Other (61,120)          449                 
Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position 98,819$          333,451$        

Plan Net Position - Beginning 3,690,971       3,357,520       

Plan Net Position - Ending 3,789,790$     3,690,971$     

District's Net Pension Liability 1,151,562$     762,520$       

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a percentage
  of the Total Pension Liability 76.70% 82.88%

Covered-Employee Payroll 1,495,144$     1,439,156$     

Employer's Net Pension Liability as a percentage
  of Covered-Employee Payroll 77.02% 52.98%

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for ten years. However, until a full ten-
year trend is compiled, information is presented for those years for which information is available.

MCHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT
ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE EMPLOYER'S NET PENSION
LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

JUNE 30, 2016

* This information presented is based on the actuarial valuation performed as of the December 31 year end prior to the
fiscal year end listed above.

Page 26
See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report



6/30/2016 * 6/30/2015 *

Actuarially Determined Contribution 174,334$          156,868$           

Contributions in relation to Actuarially
 Determined Contribution 174,334             156,868             

Contribution deficiency/(excess) -$                  -$                  

Covered-Employee Payroll 1,495,144$       1,439,156$        

Contributions as a percentage of 
 Covered-Employee Payroll 11.66% 10.90%

Notes to Schedule:

Actuarial Cost Method:  Aggregate entry age = normal

Asset Valuation Method:  5-year smoothed market; 20% corridor

Wage Growth:  4%

Salary Increases:  4.40% to 16%, including inflation

Investment Rate of Return:  7.50%

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for ten years. However, until a full
ten-year trend is compiled, information is presented for those years for which information is available.

Mortality: RP-2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Table, adjusted for mortality improvements to 2020 using projection
scale AA. For men, 120% of the table rates were used. For women, 92% of the table rates were used. For disabled
lives, the mortality rates are the rates applicable to non-disabled lives set forward ten years.

Retirement Age: Experience-based table of rates that are specific to the type of eligibility condition; last updated for
the 2011 valuation pursuant to an experience study of the period 2008 to 2010.

*Based on Valuation Assumptions used in the December 31, 2013 actuarial valuation; note two year lag between
valuation and rate setting.

Price Inflation:  3%, approximate; No explicit price inflation assumption is used in this valuation.

Remaining Amortization Period:  28-year closed period until remaining period reaches 15 years (then 15-year 
rolling period)

Amortization Method:  Level percentage of payroll, closed

MCHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT
ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION
JUNE 30, 2016

Actuarial Method and Assumptions Used on the Calculation of the 2015 Contribution Rate *

Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of December 31 each year, which are 12 months prior to
the beginning of the fiscal year in which contributions are reported.   

Page 27
See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report



BUDGETED
AMOUNTS
ORIGINAL ACTUAL
AND FINAL AMOUNTS

REVENUES
Property Taxes 3,180,646$            3,173,228$            
Annexation Impact Fees 3,000                     -                         
Fines 60,000                   44,508
Interest 5,000                     635                        
Photocopier Income 17,000                   16,120                   
Program Fees/Miscellaneous Fees 7,700                     3,453
Staff Cobra/Insurance Payments 17,000                   12,572                   
Meeting Room Fees 1,000                     950                        
Lost or Damaged Materials 6,000                     3,971                     
Dividends 500                        371                        
Collection Agency Fees 1,000                     316
Insurance Reimbursement 21,600                   21,599
Other Income 23,000                   11,157

TOTAL REVENUES 3,343,446$            3,288,880$            

EXPENDITURES
Current

General Government
Professional Services 71,000$                 26,154$                 
Printing, Publications and Postage 65,000                   59,484

136,000$               85,638$                 
Library Operations

Utilities 56,000$                 45,803$                 
Contracted Services 66,000                   49,266
Catalog and Network 118,500                 118,232
Personnel Expense 2,360,000              2,188,271              
Miscellaneous Operating Expenses 112,200                 82,515

2,712,700$            2,484,087$            

Total Current 2,848,700$            2,569,725$            

Capital Outlay
Materials and Supplies 478,150$               460,175$               
Library Furnishings 50,000                   40,628
Library Equipment 200,000                 3,469                     
Small Equipment 5,000                     694
Additional Capital Projects 270,000                 161,848

1,003,150$            666,814$               

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3,851,850$            3,236,539$            

EXCESS OR (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (508,404)$              52,341$                 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/(USES)
Interfund Transfers (800,000)                -                         

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (1,308,404)$           52,341$                 

FUND BALANCES - JULY 1, 2015 (47,164)                  (47,164)                  

FUND BALANCE ADJUSTMENT (Note 14) -                         31,231                   

FUND BALANCES - JUNE 30, 2016 (1,355,568)$           36,408$                 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

MCHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND

Page 28
See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report



BUDGETED
AMOUNTS
ORIGINAL ACTUAL
AND FINAL AMOUNTS

REVENUES
Interest 2,500$                   186$                      
Gifts and Donations 20,000                   16,374
Per Capita Grant 105,058                 52,529                   
Miscellaneous Grants 50,000                   -                         

TOTAL REVENUES 177,558$               69,089$                 

EXPENDITURES
Current

Library Operations
Operating Fund Gifts 448,381$               12,728$                 
FY 2016 Per Capita Grant

Capital Outlay 52,529                   48,355                   
Miscellaneous Grants 50,000                   -                         

Total Current 550,910$               61,083$                 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 550,910$               61,083$                 

EXCESS OR (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (373,352)$              8,006$                   

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/(USES) -                         -                         

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (373,352)$              8,006$                   

FUND BALANCES - JULY 1, 2015 429,708                 429,708                 

FUND BALANCES - JUNE 30, 2016 56,356$                437,714$               

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

MCHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GRANT AND GIFT FUND
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Page 29
See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report



 

Page 30 

MCHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT 
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

JUNE 30, 2016 
 

 
NOTE 1 - BUDGETARY PROCESS 
 

Annual budgets are legally adopted and separately reported for all funds of the Library.  The 
budget was passed on September 29, 2015. The Library follows these procedures in 
establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements: 

 
1. The Library Director requests input on the needs of the different departments of the Library. 
 
2. The Library Director uses this input to prepare a preliminary budget. 
 
3. The staff and Library Director then go over the preliminary budget and make any necessary 

adjustments. 
 
4. The revised budget is then submitted to the budget committee, who goes over it and makes 

any changes with the Library Director. 
 
5. The budget is then presented to and reviewed by the Board at a public hearing. 

 
NOTE 2 - EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER BUDGET 
 

For the year ended June 30, 2016, no fund presented as Required Supplementary Information 
had expenditures that exceeded the budget.  

 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
 
 



BUDGETED
AMOUNTS
ORIGINAL ACTUAL
AND FINAL AMOUNTS

REVENUES
Developer Fees 25,000$                 14,921$                 
Interest 3,000                     660
Other Income 2,000 -                         
Gifts and Donations 25,000                   -                         

TOTAL REVENUES 55,000$                 15,581$                 

EXPENDITURES
Capital Outlay 400,000$               -$                       

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 400,000$               -$                       

EXCESS OR (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (345,000)$              15,581$                 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/(USES)
Interfund Transfers 800,000                 -                         

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 455,000$               15,581$                 

FUND BALANCES - JULY 1, 2015 1,731,875              1,731,875              

FUND BALANCES - JUNE 30, 2016 2,186,875$           1,747,456$            

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

MCHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

SPECIAL RESERVE FUND
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

Page 31
See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report



Special Purpose Long Form

CCIF Copy - 11/2/2016 7:51:50 AM

DO NOT SEND THIS PAPER COPY - THIS IS YOUR COPY.

MAKE SURE YOU HAVE CLICKED THE SUBMIT BUTTON IN
THE COMPTROLLER CONNECT PROGRAM.  THIS WILL
PROVIDE THE COMPTROLLER'S OFFICE WITH A COPY
OF YOUR ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT.

Unit Name : Mc Henry Public Library District Country : Mchenry Unit Code : 063/029/10

I attest that, to the best of my knowledge, this report represents a complete and accurate statement of the financial position, the Contact Information, the TIF 
status, the FEIN status, the Total Appropriations, and the Legal Debt Limitation of Mc Henry Public Library District as of the end of this fiscal year.

Written signature of government official 

Please Sign :____________________________________________ Date : _____________

James Scholtz, Director

FY 2016 Annual Financial Report

STATE OF ILLINOIS
COMPTROLLER

LESLIE GEISSLER MUNGER



Unit Name : Mc Henry Public Library District

Unit Code : 063/029/10

STEP 1: ENTER CONTACT INFORMATION

Is the following information correct and complete?                     __________     Yes      __________      No

Please be sure to fill out this section accurately.  The information you provide below is (1) our primary way of contacting your government, (2) the information we supply to external agencies, and 
(3) is the name and title we will list on our website.  This section should NOT contain ANY of your Accounting Professional's information.

A. Contact Person (elected or appointed official 
responsible for filling out this form.)

B. Chief Executive Officer (Enter your name here ONLY 
if you are the elected or appointed official responsible 
for the EXECUTIVE ADMINISTRATION, i.e. mayor, 
supervisor, or chairman.  Your name will be listed with 
this responsibility on our website.)

C. Chief Financial Officer (Enter your name here ONLY if 
you are the elected or appointed official responsible for 
MAINTAINING THE GOVERNMENT'S FINANCIAL 
RECORDS.  Your name will be listed with this 
responsibility on our website.)

James Scholtz James C Scholtz James C Scholtz

Director Director Director

809 North Front Street 809 North Front Street 809 North Front Street

Mc Henry McHenry McHenry

IL  60050 IL  60050 IL  60050

Phone: 815-385-0036     Ext. Phone: 815-385-0036     Ext. Phone: 815-385-0036     Ext.

Fax: 815-385-7085 Fax: 815-385-7085 Fax: 815-385-7085

E-Mail: jscholtz@mchenrylibrary.org E-Mail: jscholtz@mchenrylibrary.org E-Mail: jscholtz@mchenrylibrary.org

D. Purchasing Agent (Enter the Purchasing Agent or if 
there is no Purchasing Agent, the name of the person 
responsible for oversight of all competitively bid 
contracts should be listed.)

E. FOIA Officer (Enter the FOIA Officer or if there is no 
FOIA Officer, the name of the person responsible for 
oversight of all FOIA requests should be listed.)

James Scholtz James Scholtz

Purchasing Agent Director

809 North Front Street 809 North Front Street

McHenry McHenry

IL  60050 IL  60050

Phone: 815-385-0036     Ext. Phone: (815) 385-0036     Ext.

Fax: 815-385-7085 Fax: (815) 385-7085

E-Mail: jscholtz@mchenrylibrary.org E-Mail: jscholtz@mchenrylibrary.org

     If the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer are the same person as the Contact Person, please check this box and skip to Step 2.

1
Office of the Comptroller, Leslie Geissler Munger

FY 2016 AFR
Special Purpose Form



FY END DATE: 6/30/2016

A.  Has your government implemented GASB 34 in FY 2016 reporting or in previous reporting years?   
    

 If Yes:

        Governments who have implemented GASB 34 and are using "other basis of accounting" (OCBOA) such as "Cash Basis" and "Modified Cash Basis" as 
their accounting system will now be able to select these types as their accounting system.

         Please fill out the Alternative Assets & Liabilities page, located on page F1(b)

B.  Which type of accounting system does Mc Henry Public Library District use?

  X  

          

STEP 2: VERIFY FISCAL YEAR END

Unit Name : Mc Henry Public Library District

Unit Code : 063/029/10

If the fiscal year end date listed above is incorrect, follow the steps outlined in the Comptroller Connect application to provide your official 
documentation that confirms your fiscal year end date.  Upon receipt and approval of this documentation, your fiscal year end date can be officially 
amended.

C.  Does the government have bonded debt this reporting fiscal year?

If "Yes", indicate the type(s) of debt and complete the Statement of Indebtednessand Debt Limitations and Future Debt pages, located on page F5 and F6.

               

D.  Does the government have debt, other than bonded debt this reporting fiscal year?

If "Yes", indicate the type(s) of debt and complete the Statement of Indebtedness and Debt Limitations and Future Debt pages, located on page F5 and F6.

          

E.  Does the government own or operate a public utility company?      Yes   X  No

     Yes   X  No

     Yes   X  No

                                      

    X    Yes          No

Cash - with no assets (Cash Basis) Modified Accrual/Accrual

Cash - with assets (Modified Cash Basis) Combination (Explain)

G.O.Bonds Revenue Bonds Alternative Revenue Bonds

Contractual Commitments Other (Explain)

Water/Sewer Electric/Gas/Transit 911 Telephone/Telecommunications Other

STEP 3: GASB 34, ACCOUNTING SYSTEM, DEBT, UTILITY, HOME RULE, TIF, AND PENSION / RETIREMENT BENEFITS

                             

     

If "Yes", indicate the type(s) of utilities and enter the expenditures in Code 271.

  X  Yes      No

If Yes, indicate the type(s) of pension funds or other retirement benefits and complete the Pension Funds/Retirement Benefits section.

       X  Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF) Sheriff's Law Enforcement Personnel Plan (SLEP)     

     

Police Pension

Other Pension    

     

     

Fire Pension

Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB)

F.  Does the government have a pension funds or other retirement benefits this reporting fiscal year?

2
Office of the Comptroller, Leslie Geissler Munger

FY 2016 AFR
Special Purpose Form



STEP 4: POPULATION, EAV AND EMPLOYEES

Unit Name : Mc Henry Public Library District

Unit Code : 063/029/10

42,023

$833,320,832

How many full time employees are paid?* 30

How many part time employees are paid?* 21

What is the total salary paid to all employees? $1,614,544

^     Or provide estimated population.
*     Do not include contractual employees.

What is the total population of Mc Henry Public Library District?^

What is the total EAV of Mc Henry Public Library District?

3
Office of the Comptroller, Leslie Geissler Munger

FY 2016 AFR
Special Purpose Form

STEPS 5 AND 6: COMPONENT UNITS AND APPROPRIATIONS

Provide the appropriation for the primary government listed in the first row of the table below.

In the remaining rows, provide the names of all component units along with their appropriations.  Indicate if the component units are blended or discretely presented, 
its fiscal year end date and if the component unit was funded with governmental fund types or enterprise fund types.  If the component units are already indicated, 
that data is based on forms submitted last year.  If you have more component units than the rows provided below, please indicate them on an attachment.

If you need assistance with the terms indicated below, refer to the Chart of Accounts and Definitions and the How to Fill Out An AFR documents.

Name of Unit/Component

FUNDS SHOULD NOT BE LISTED HERE* Appropriation^

Type of Component Unit
(Blended or 

Discretely Presented)
Fiscal Year

End

Enterprise Fund Type 
or Governmental Fund 

Type

Mc Henry Public Library District $5,158,279  06/30  

Total Appropriations $5,158,279

*      Do not enter funds such as Joint Bridge, Permanent Road, Town Fund, Equipment, Water & Sewer, General Assistance, etc.  These funds should be included in 
Step 8.

^      If the Primary Government or Component Unit does NOT budget or levy taxes, please enter the unit's TOTAL EXPENDITURES.



Unit Name : Mc Henry Public Library District

Unit Code : 063/029/10

STEP 7: OTHER GOVERNMENTS

Indicate any payments Mc Henry Public Library District made to other governments for services or programs (include programs performed on a 
reimbursement, cost-sharing basis or federal payroll taxes).

  Federal government payroll taxes

  Intergovernmental agreements - indicate how much was paid

  All other intergovernmental payments $0

$121,794

$0

4
Office of the Comptroller, Leslie Geissler Munger

FY 2016 AFR
Special Purpose Form

STEP 8: FUND LISTING & ACCOUNT GROUPS

A. List all funds and how much was spent in FY 2016 for each fund.  Also, indicate the Fund Type (Fund Types are at the 
top of each column beginning on page F1).  If any fund names appear below, the data is based on forms submitted last year.  
Please make all necessary corrections.  If you have more fund names than the rows provided below, please indicate them on an 
attachment.

Fund Name Expenditure Fund Type FY End

General $3,236,539 General Fund 06/30

Grant & Gift $61,083 Special Revenue Fund 06/30

Special Reserve Capital Projects Fund 06/30

Total Expenditures $3,297,622

B. Does Mc Henry Public Library District have assets or liabilities that should be recorded as a part of Account Groups?  See Chart of Acounts and 
Definitions and the How to Fill Out An AFR documents for more information about Account Groups.

     Yes   X  No



Unit Name : Mc Henry Public Library District

Unit Code : 063/029/10

STEP 9: GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES

Entity Name Relationship

  

List of governmental entities that are part of or related to the primary government.  Exclude component units detailed in Steps 
5 & 6.  Most small governments do not have governmental entities.

STEP 10: REPORTING

Check any state or local entity where financial reports are filed.

STATE AGENCIES

      - Board of Education       - Board of Higher Education

      - DCEO       - Department of Insurance

OTHER STATE OR LOCAL OFFICES

  X  - Illinois Comptroller       - Secretary of State

      - General Assembly - House       - General Assembly - Senate

  X  - County Clerk       - Circuit Clerk

      - Governor's Office       - Other - 
                                                                                         
        

5
Office of the Comptroller, Leslie Geissler Munger

FY 2016 AFR
Special Purpose Form



Assets

Code
Enter All Amounts in 

Whole Numbers Governmental Activity Business-Like Activity Fiduciary

Discretely
Presented

Component
Units

Current Assets

101t Cash and Cash Equivalent $3,817,372 $0 $0 $0

102t Investments $0 $0 $0 $0

115t Receivables $1,548,315 $0 $0 $0

109t Inventories $0 $0 $0 $0

112t Other Assets (Explain) $145,371 $0 $0 $0

Non-Current Assets

116t Capital Assets/Net of Accumulated Depreciation $6,865,494 $0 $0 $0

117t Other Capital Assets (Explain) $0 $0 $0 $0

120t Total Assets $12,376,552 $0 $0 $0

150t Deferred Outflow of Resources $505,909 $0 $0 $0

Liabilities

Code
Enter All Amounts in 

Whole Numbers Governmental Activity Business-Like Activity Fiduciary

Discretely
Presented

Component
Units

Current Liabilities

122t All Payables $14,581 $0 $0 $0

132t Deferred Revenues $32,393 $0 $0 $0

128t Other Liabilities (Explain) $137,039 $0 $0 $0

Non-Current/Long Term Liabilities

129t Due Within One Year $0 $0 $0 $0

130t Due Beyond One Year $0 $0 $0 $0

131t Other Non-Current/Long Term Liabilities (Explain) $1,151,562 $0 $0 $0

135t Total Liabilities $1,335,575 $0 $0 $0

155t Deferred Inflow of Resources $3,148,852 $0 $0 $0

Net Position

Code
Enter All Amounts in 

Whole Numbers Governmental Activity Business-Like Activity Fiduciary

Discretely
Presented

Component
Units

143t Investments in Capital Assets/Net of Related Debt $6,865,494 $0 $0 $0

148t Net Position - Restricted $0 $0 $0 $0

149t Net Position - Unrestricted $1,532,540 $0 $0 $0

146t Total Net Position $8,398,034 $0 $0 $0

147t Total Liabilities & Net Position $9,733,609 $0 $0 $0

F1b
Office of the Comptroller, Leslie Geissler Munger

FY 2016 AFR
Special Purpose Form



Revenues and Receipts

Code
Enter All Amounts in 

Whole Numbers General
Special

Revenue
Capital
Projects

Debt
Service Enterprise

Internal 
Service Fiduciary

Discretely
Presented

Component
Units

Local Taxes Report In Whole Numbers

201t Property Tax $3,173,228 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

203t Utilities Tax $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

204t Other Taxes (Explain) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Intergovernmental Receipts & Grants

212t State Sales Tax $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

213t State Motor Fuel Tax $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

214t State Replacement Tax $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

205t State Gaming Tax(es) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

215t Other State Sources (Explain) $0 $52,529 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

225t Federal Sources $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

226t Other Intergovernmental Sources (Explain) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Other Local Sources

231t Licenses and Permits $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

233t Fines and Forfeitures $44,508 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

234t Charges for Services $24,494 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

235t Interest $635 $186 $660 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

236t Miscellaneous (Explain) $46,015 $16,374 $14,921 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

240t Total Receipts and Revenue $3,288,880 $69,089 $15,581 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

F2
Office of the Comptroller, Leslie Geissler Munger

FY 2016 AFR
Special Purpose Form



Disbursements, Expenditures and Expenses

Code
Enter All Amounts in 

Whole Numbers General
Special

Revenue
Capital
Projects

Debt
Service Enterprise

Internal 
Service Fiduciary

Discretely
Presented

Component
Units

Report In Whole Numbers

251t General Government $85,638 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

252t Public Safety $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

254t Judiciary and Legal $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

255t Transportation and Public Works $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

256t Social Services $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

257t Culture and Recreation $2,484,087 $61,083 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

258t Housing $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

275t Environment $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

259t Debt $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

271t Public Utility Company $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

272t Depreciation $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

280t Capital Outlay $666,814 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

260t Other Expenditures/Expenses (Explain) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

270t Total Expenditures/Expense $3,236,539 $61,083 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

F3
Office of the Comptroller, Leslie Geissler Munger

FY 2016 AFR
Special Purpose Form



Fund Balances and Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Code
Enter All Amounts in 

Whole Numbers General
Special

Revenue
Capital
Projects

Debt
Service Enterprise

Internal 
Service Fiduciary

Discretely
Presented

Component
Units

Report In Whole Numbers

301t
Excess of receipts/revenues over (under) 
expenditures/expenses (240t-270t) $52,341 $8,006 $15,581 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

302t Operating transfers in $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

303t Operating transfers out $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

304t Bond proceeds $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

305t Other long term debt (Explain) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

306t
Net increase (decrease) in fund balance (301t + 
302t - 303t + 304t + 305t) $52,341 $8,006 $15,581 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

307t Previous year fund balance ($47,164) $429,708 $1,731,875 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

308t Other (Explain) $31,231 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

310t
Current Year Ending Fund Balance (306t + 
307t + 308t) $36,408 $437,714 $1,747,456 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

F4
Office of the Comptroller, Leslie Geissler Munger

FY 2016 AFR
Special Purpose Form



Statement of Indebtedness (Governmental & Proprietary combined)

Debt Instruments for All Funds Code

Outstanding
Beginning of 

Year Code
Issued Current 

Fiscal Year Code

Retired 
Current

Fiscal Year Code
Outstanding
End of Year

Original
 Issue 

Amount

Final 
Maturity

 Date

Interest 
Rate 

Ranges-Lowest

Interest
 Rate

 Ranges-Highest

Report In Whole Numbers

General Obligation Bonds 400 $0 406 $0 412 $0 418 $0 $0 0.00% 0.00%

Revenue Bonds 401 $0 407 $0 413 $0 419 $0 $0 0.00% 0.00%

Alternate Revenue Bonds 402 $0 408 $0 414 $0 420 $0 $0 0.00% 0.00%

Contractual Commitments 403 $0 409 $0 415 $0 421 $0 $0 0.00% 0.00%

Other (Explain) 404 $0 410 $0 416 $0 422 $0 $0 0.00% 0.00%

Total Debt 405 $0 411 $0 417 $0 423 $0

F5
Office of the Comptroller, Leslie Geissler Munger

FY 2016 AFR
Special Purpose Form



Debt Limitations and Future Debt

     I certify that Mc Henry Public Library District does not have Legal Debt Limitation

     Based on Statute

     Based on Other

Total Legal Debt Limitation: $23,957,97
4

Total Debt Applicable to the limit: $0 Legal Debt Margin: $23,957,974 Legal Debt Margin (%): 100.00%

Future Debt Service Requirements for Bonded Debt listed above 

Year Ending Principal Interest Total

2017 $0 $0 $0

2018 $0 $0 $0

2019 $0 $0 $0

2020 $0 $0 $0

2021 $0 $0 $0

2022-2026 $0 $0 $0

2027-2031 $0 $0 $0

2032-2036 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $ 0 $ 0 $ 0

Please provide a summary of the authorized debt limitations, including any 
statutory references.

2015 EAV $833,320,832 x 2.875%

F6
Office of the Comptroller, Leslie Geissler Munger

FY 2016 AFR
Special Purpose Form



Pension Funds / Retirement Benefits

Code
Enter All Amounts in

Whole Numbers IMRF Police Pension Fire Pension

2013 2014 2015 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3

500 Actuarial Valuation Date (VD) 12/31/2013 12/31/2014 12/31/2015

500a Reporting Date (RD) 06/30/2014 06/30/2015 06/30/2016

500b Measurement Date (MD) 12/31/2013 12/31/2014 12/31/2015

501 Total Pension Liability (TPL) $2,775,150 $4,453,491 $4,941,352 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

502 Plan Fiduciary Net Position (FNP) $1,919,780 $3,690,971 $3,789,790 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

503 Net Pension Liability (NPL) $855,370 $762,520 $1,151,562 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

504
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a 
Percentage of Total Pension Liability 69.17% 82.87% 76.69% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

505
Net Pension Obligation/ Net OPEB 
Obligation $1 $1 $1 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Enter All Amounts in Whole Numbers

Code SLEP Other Pension OPEB (Net)

Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3

500 Actuarial Valuation Date (VD)

500a Reporting Date (RD)

500b Measurement Date (MD)

501 Total Pension Liability (TPL) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

502 Plan Fiduciary Net Position (FNP) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

503 Net Pension Liability (NPL) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

504
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a 
Percentage of Total Pension Liability 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

505
Net Pension Obligation / Net OPEB 
Obligation $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

F8
Office of the Comptroller, Leslie Geissler Munger

FY 2016 AFR
Special Purpose Form



Capital Outlay*

 
These are not funds

Code Function Construction Land, Structures, and Equipment

601t General Government $0 $0

602t Law Enforcement $0 $0

603t Corrections $0 $0

604t Fire $0 $0

605t Sewerage $0 $0

606t Sanitation and Wastewater $0 $0

607t Parks and Recreation $0 $0

608t Housing and Community Development $0 $0

609t Highways, Roads and Bridges $0 $0

610t Parking Facilities $0 $0

611t Welfare $0 $0

612t Hospital $0 $0

613t Water $0 $0

614t Nursing Homes $0 $0

615t Conservation and Natural Resources $0 $0

616t Libraries $0 $666,814

617t Other $0 $0

*This page should only be filled out if you have spent funds for capital projects or development.

*The Capital Outlay page is requested by the U.S. Census Bureau and is considered optional by the State Comptroller.

*If you complete this page you WILL NOT have to complete the Survey of Government Finances from the U.S. Census Bureau.

*If you do NOT complete this page the U.S. Census Bureau will contact you for further information.

F8
Office of the Comptroller, Leslie Geissler Munger

FY 2016 AFR
Special Purpose Form



Explanation or Comments

Type Explanation

112t Governmental
  Prepaid Items - $145,371

128t Governmental
  Accrued Payroll - $87,185
  Accrued Payroll Taxes - $6,469
  Compensated Absences - $43,385
    Total - $137,039

131t Governmental  
  Net Pension Liability (IMRF) - $1,151,562

236t General 
  Staff Cobra/Insurance Payments - $12,572
  Dividends - $371
  Collection Agency Fees - $316
  Insurance Reimbursement - $21,599
  Other Income - $11,157
     Total - $46,015
 
Special Revenue
  Gifts and Donations - $16,374

Capital Projects
  Developer Fees - $14,921

308t General
  Adjustment to correct prior year misstatement of the property tax receivable allowance account- $31,231

AuthDebtLimit 2015 EAV $833,320,832 x 2.875%

GEN Special Revenue
  Per Capita Grant - $52,529

F7
Office of the Comptroller, Leslie Geissler Munger

FY 2016 AFR
Special Purpose Form



CPA Information

According to the Governmental Account Audit Act [50 ILCS 310], an Annual Audit submitted to the IL Office of the Comptroller shall be performed by a licensed public accountant, with a valid certificate as a public 
accountant under the Illinois Public Accounting Act [225 ILCS 450].  Please access the website of the Illinois General Assembly (www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs.asp) to view these Acts.  If your government is required 
to submit an Annual Audit, please complete the following:

Is the Licensed Certified Public Accountant performing your audit working as an individual licensed in Illinois, or are they working in association with a Public Accounting Firm or a Professional Service Corporation 
licensed in Illinois, or are they licensed in another state?  Please use a checkmark to select one choice:

        Individual Licensed Certified Public Accountant         Public Accounting Firm (IL License)    X   Professional Service Corporation (IL License)

        Out-of-State (Individual / Public Accounting Firm / Professional Service Corporation)

Is the Licensed Certified Public Accountant performing your audit working as an individual licensed in Illinois, or are they working in association with a Public Accounting Firm or a Professional Service 
Corporation licensed in Illinois,  or are they licensed in another state? Please use a checkmark to select one choice:

Enter the active 9-digit License#: 060004991 License Status: ACTIVE

Business Name: EDER CASELLA & CO

Address: 5400 W ELM ST STE 203 Address 2:                                                                                             

City: MCHENRY State: IL ZIP: 60050

Phone: 815-344-1300 Ext.                   Fax: 815-344-1320 E-Mail: cpas@edercasella.com

Professional Service Corporation must use a Licensed Certified Public Accountant to perform an audit.  Please provide the following information for this licensee.

Enter the active 9-digit License#: 065029356 License Status: ACTIVE

Last Name: ALBANESE First Name: JOHN Title:                   

Address: 5400 W Elm St Ste 203 Address 2:                                                              

City: McHenry State: IL ZIP: 60050-4032

Phone: 815-344-1300 Ext.                   Fax: 815-344-1320 E-Mail: cpas@edercasella.com

F10
Office of the Comptroller, Leslie Geissler Munger

FY 2016 AFR
Special Purpose Form



List of Error(s) still needing to be resolved

F11
Office of the Comptroller, Leslie Geissler Munger

FY 2016 AFR
Special Purpose Form



 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
To the Board of Trustees 
McHenry Public Library District 
McHenry, Illinois 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the governmental activities, 
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of  McHenry Public Library District 
(Library) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered the Library’s internal control 
over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing auditing procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Library’s 
internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Library’s 
internal control. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding 
paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and, therefore, material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies may exist that were not identified.  However, as discussed below, we identified certain 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies in internal control, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, 
or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.  We consider the following deficiencies in internal 
control to be material weaknesses: 
 

Approval of Invoices  
 
During our review of the Library’s controls over cash disbursements, we noted that there 
was a lack of management approval on invoices that were being paid.  It is recommended 
that management follow the procedures they have in place and have all invoices go 
through the proper review and approval process before being submitted for payment.   
 
Internal Control Recommendation 
 
Currently, the Library allows an excessive number of employees to have access to all 
aspects of the payroll system and does not conduct a review of wage rates.  We 
recommend that management limit the number of employees with access to the payroll 
system and incorporate mitigating controls that will alert management whenever changes 
are made to wage rates.  A review of wage rates should also be implemented to ensure 
that all employees are being paid at the correct rate before payroll is submitted.  The 
implementation of these recommendations would provide better internal control and a 
more thorough review process of payroll.



 

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of 
Trustees, and others within the organization, and is not intended to be, and should not be, used 
by anyone other than these specified parties. 
 
 

  
 

 EDER, CASELLA & CO. 
 Certified Public Accountants 
McHenry, Illinois 
November 3, 2016 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 



 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
November 3, 2016 
 
 
To the Board of Trustees 
McHenry Public Library District 
McHenry, Illinois 
 
 
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and 
the aggregate remaining fund information of McHenry Public Library District (Library) for the year 
ended June 30, 2016.  Professional standards require that we provide you with information about 
our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards, as well as certain information 
related to the planned scope and timing of our audit.  We have communicated such information 
in our letter to you dated September 12, 2016. Professional standards also require that we 
communicate to you the following information related to our audit. 
 
Significant Audit Findings 
 
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 
 
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies.  The 
significant accounting policies used by McHenry Public Library District are described in Note 1 to 
the financial statements.  During fiscal year 2016, the Library adopted GASB Statement No. 72, 
Fair Value Measurement and Application.  We noted no transactions entered into by the Library 
during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus.  All significant 
transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.  
 
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management, 
and are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and 
assumptions about future events.  Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because 
of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events 
affecting them may differ significantly from those expected.  The most sensitive estimates 
affecting the financial statements were:  depreciation, net pension liability, and property tax 
allowance. 
 
Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to 
financial statement users.  The most sensitive disclosures affecting the financial statements were:  
None noted.   
 
The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 
 
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 
 
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and 
completing our audit. 
 

 
 



Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 
 
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified 
during the audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate 
level of management.  The attached adjustments, detected as a result of audit procedures, were 
corrected by management. 
 
Disagreements with Management 
 
For purpose of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, 
or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the 
financial statements or the auditor’s report.  We are pleased to report that no such disagreements 
arose during the course of our audit. 
 
Management Representations 
 
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the 
management representation letter, a copy of which is attached. 
 
Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 
 
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and 
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations.  If a consultation 
involves application of an accounting principle to the Library’s financial statements or a 
determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our 
professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the 
consultant has all the relevant facts.  To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with 
other accountants. 
 
Other Audit Findings or Issues 
 
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and 
auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Library’s auditors.  
However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and 
our responses were not a condition to our retention. 
 
Other Matters 
 
We applied certain limited procedures to the Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Illinois 
Municipal Retirement Fund Schedule of Funding Progress, and budgetary comparison 
information, which are required supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the basic 
financial statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the 
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with 
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge 
we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do 
not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI. 
 
Restriction on Use 
 
This information is intended solely for the information and use of the Board and management of 
McHenry Public Library District and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone 
other than these specified parties. 
 
Very truly yours, 
 

 
 
EDER, CASELLA & CO. 
Certified Public Accountants   



9/20/2016 
11:20AM 

Client: 
Engagement: 
Period Ending: 
Trial Balance: 
Workpaper:  

McHenry Public Library 
McHenry Public Library District 
6/30/2016 
10 - General Fund 
10 - General Fund AJE Report 

Account Description WIP Ref Debit Credit 

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 1 
Adjust Trial Balance to Accrual Basis 

Total 

1055-100 
1080-100 
30 10-100 
1057-100 
2000-100 
20 10-100 
2025-100 
2030-100 

Property Tax Receivable 
Prepaid Expenses 
Fund Balance - General 
Allowance for Uncollectible 
Accounts Payable 
Accrued Payroll 
Accrued Payroll Taxes 
Deferred Revenue 

1,572.484.47 
140,869.13 

1,612,292.66 

3,325,646.26 

31,230.00 
35,930.51 
72,431.27 

5,408.04 
3,180,646.44 
3,325,646.26 

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 2 
Remove Prior Year Prepaid Expenses 

Total 

8010-100 
8025- 100 
8090-100 
8095-100 
8130-100 
8245-100 
831 0-100 
8320-100 
8430-100 
8720-100 
8940- 100 
1080-100 

Adult Books 
Professional Books 
eBook Services 
Electronic Subscriptions 
Tech Services Supplies 
Computer! Ofc Eqp Repairs! Contr 
CCS, SIRSI & Liasion Expense 
Network Expenses 
Automation & Misc. Consultants 
Building Insurance 
Health & Life Insurance 
Prepaid Expenses 

487.50 
1,185.00 

21,961.36 
60,143.38 

1,755.83 
28,471.86 

1,693.46 
2,683.67 

834.00 
6,012.77 

15,640.30 

140,869.13 
140,869.13 
140,869.13 

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 3 
Record Current Year Prepaid Expenses 

Total 

1080-100 
8025-100 
8090-100 
8095-100 
8130-100 
8245-100 
831 0-100 
8320-100 
8720-100 
8940-100 

Prepaid Expenses 
Professional Books 
eBook Services 
Electronic Subscriptions 
Tech Services Supplies 
Computer! Ofc Eqp Repairs! Contr 
CCS. SIRSI & Liasior Expense 
Network Expenses 
Building Insurance 
Health & Life Insurance 

141,198.09 

141,198.09 

1,216.66 
22,738.99 
68,630.65 

1,755.83 
15,826.96 

1,267.42 
2,777.60 
6,697.71 

20,286.27 
141,198.09 

1 of 3 



35,930.51 

35,930.51 

743.94 
2,533.13 

125.00 
89.50 

4,073.86 
203.00 
70.00 

1,324.50 
60.40 

12,532.18 
14,175.00 
35,930.51 

9/20/2016 
11:20AM 

Client: 
Engagement: 
Period Ending 
Trial Balance: 
Workpaper:  

McHenry Public Library 
McHenry Public Library District 
6/30/2016 
10- General Fund 
10- General Fund AJE Report 

Account Description W/P Ref Debit Credit 

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 4 
Adjust Property Tax Receivable and Deferred Revenue for 
Current Year 

1055-100 Property Tax Receivable 
2030-100 Deferred Revenue 
6010-100 Property Taxes 

Total 

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 5 
Adjust Accrued Payroll and Taxes for Current Year 

8910-1 00 Salanes 
8920-100 FICA 
2010-100 Accrued Payroll 
2025-100 Accrued Payroll Taxes 

Total 

112.95 
5.84 

107.11 
112.95 112.95 

14,753.86 
1,060.67 

14,753.86 
1,060.67 

15,814.53 15,814.53 

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 6 
Remove Prior Year Accounts Payable 

2000-100 
801 0-100 
8020-100 
8 150-100 
8215-100 
831 0-100 
8410-100 
8635-100 
8740-100 
8760-100 
8795-100 
9090-1 00 

Total  

Accounts Payable 
Adult Books 
YPS Books 
YPS Programs & Supplies 
Collection Agency Fees 
CCS, SIRSI & Liasion Expense 
Accounting/Payroll & Audit Services 
T-1 & Telecommunications 
Building & Equipment Repairs 
Hospitality 
Miscellaneous Expenses 
Additional Capital Projects 

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 7 
Record Vending Machine Reimbursement that wasn't 
Received until July. 

1059-100 Other Receivables 
9090-100 Additional Capital Projects 

Total 

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 8 
Prior Period Adjustment to Correct Deferred Revenue 
Account 

2030-100 Deferred Revenue 
3010-100 Fund Balance - General 

Total 

4,394.57 
4,394.57 

4,394.57 4,394.57 

31,230.00 
31,230.00 

31,230.00 31,230.00 

2 of 3 



9/20/2016 
11:20AM 

Client: 
Engagement: 
Period Ending 
Trial Balance: 
Workpaper:  

McHenry Public Library 
McHenry Public Library District 
6/30/20 16 
10 - General Fund 
10- General Fund AJE Report 

Account Description W/P Ref Debit Credit 

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 9 
Adjust Property Tax Allowance Account 

2030-100 Deferred Revenue 570.00 
1057-100 Allowance for Uncollectible 570.00 

Total 570.00 570.00 

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 10 
Record Current Year Accounts Payable 

8120-100 
81 47-100 
8215-100 
8320-100 
8320-100 
8410- 100 
8610- 100 
8620-100 
8640-100 
2000-100  

Library Supplies 
Summer Reading Club 
Collection Agency Fees 
Network Expenses 
Network Expenses 
Accounting/Payroll & Audit Services 
Electricity 
Gas - NICOR 
Water & Sewer 
Accounts Payable  

64.15 
24.08 
44.75 

3,708.84 
5,900.34 

267.75 
2,678.42 

83.62 
1,808.97 

14,580.92 

9,563.85 

9,563.85  

14,580.92 
14,580.92 

9,563.85 
9,563.85 

Total 

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 11 
Reclass Negative Expense Balance because of Voided 
Check to Revenue Account 

8795-100 Miscellaneous Expenses 
6131-1 00 Misc Other Income - General 

Total 

I have reviewed and agree with the above adjustments: 

Signa e 

g-c20- 2Ol 
Date 

3 of 3 



9/2012016 
10:22 AM 

Client: 
Engagement: 
Period Ending: 
Trial Balance: 
Workpaper: 

Account 

McHenry Public Library 
McHenry Public Library District 
6/30/20 16 
20 - Special Reserve Fund 
20 - Special Reserve AJE Report 

Description WIP Ref Debit Credit 

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 1 
Adjust Trial Balance to Accrual Basis 

1200-200 Developer Donations Receivable 
3010-200 Fund Balance - Special Reserve 

Total 

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 2 
Adjust Receivable to Current Year Balance 

6020-200 Developer Fees 
1200-200 Developer Donations Receivable 

Total 

10,290.00 

10,290.00 

7,167.00 

7,167.00 

10,290.00 
10,290.00 

7,167.00 
7,167.00 

I have reviewed and agree wi h the above adjustments: 

Signa e 

r-2bI 
Date 

1 of 1 



9/20/2016 
10:20 AM 

Client: McHenry Public Library 
Engagement: McHenry Public Library District 
Period Ending: 6/30/2016 
Workpaper: 30 - Grant Fund AJE Report 

Account Description 

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # I 
Adjust Trial Balance to Accrual Basis 

3010-300 Fund Balance - Special Revenue 
2055-300 Deferred Revenue 

Total 

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 2 
Adjust Deferred Revenue to Actual 

2055-300 Deferred Revenue 
6170-300 Per Capita Grant 

Total 

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 3 
Record FY 2016 Per Capita Grant on Books in FY 2016. 

1060-300 First Midwest Bank Money Market 
2055-300 Deferred Revenue 

Total 

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 4 
Record Current Year Prepaid Expenses 

1090-300 Prepaid Expenses 
8800-341 Other Equipment-Per Capita 

Total 

WIP Ref Debit Credit 

52,528.75 
52,528.75 

52,528.75 52,528.75 

52,528.75 
52,528.75 

52,528.75 52,528.75 

32,393.43 
32,393.43 

32,393.43 32,393.43 

4,173.74 
4,173.74 

4,173.74 4,173.74 

I have reviewed and agree with the above adjustments: 

Signah)je 

C) 

Date 

1 of 1 



McHenry Public Library District 
809 N. Front Street 
McHenry, IL 60050 

 
 
Eder, Casella & Co. 
5400 West Elm Street 
Suite 203 
McHenry, Illinois 60050 
 
This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of 
McHenry Public Library District (Library), which comprise the respective financial position of the 
governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information as of 
June 30, 2016, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows 
for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, for the purpose of 
expressing opinions as to whether the financial statements are presented fairly, in all material 
respects, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America (U.S. GAAP). 
 
Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material.  
Items are considered material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of 
accounting information that, in light of surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the 
judgment of a reasonable person relying on the information would be changed or influenced by the 
omission or misstatement.  An omission or misstatement that is monetarily small in amount could 
be considered material as a result of qualitative factors. 
 
We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, the following representations made to you 
during your audit. 
 
Financial Statements 
 
1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement letter 

dated September 12, 2016, including our responsibility for the preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP, and for preparation of 
the supplementary information in accordance with the applicable criteria. 
 

2. The financial statements referred to above are fairly presented in conformity with U.S. GAAP 
and include all properly classified funds and other financial information of the primary 
government and all component units required by generally accepted accounting principles to 
be included in the financial reporting entity. 

 
3. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of 

internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 
4. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of 

internal control to prevent and detect fraud. 
 

5. Significant assumptions we used in making accounting estimates, including those measured 
at fair value, are reasonable. 

 
6. Related party relationships and transactions, including revenues, expenditures/expenses, 

loans, transfers, leasing arrangements, and guarantees, and amounts receivable from or 
payable to related parties have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in 
accordance with U.S. GAAP. 



7. Adjustments or disclosures have been made for all events, including instances of 
noncompliance, subsequent to the date of the financial statements that would require 
adjustment to, or disclosure in, the financial statements. 

 
8. We are in agreement with the adjusting journal entries you have proposed, if any, and they 

will be posted. 
 

9. We are not aware of any pending or threatened litigation, claims, or assessments or 
unasserted claims or assessments that are required to be accrued or disclosed in the 
financial statements, and we have not consulted a lawyer concerning litigation, claims, or 
assessments. 

 
10. Guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the Library is contingently liable, if any, 

have been properly recorded or disclosed. 
 
Information Provided 
 
11. We have provided you with: 

 
a. Access to all information, of which we are aware, that is relevant to the preparation and 

fair presentation of the financial statements, such as records, documentation, and other 
matters. 
 

b. Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit. 
 

c. Unrestricted access to persons within the Library from whom you determined it necessary 
to obtain audit evidence. 

 
d. Minutes of the meetings of the Board of Trustees or summaries of actions of recent 

meetings as listed below: 
 

 July 21, 2015 – Regular Meeting 
 August 24, 2015 – Regular Meeting 
 September 15, 2015 – Regular Meeting & Public Hearing 
 September 29, 2015 – Regular Meeting 
 October 20, 2015 – Regular Meeting 
 November 17, 2015 – Regular Meeting 
 December 15, 2015 – Regular Meeting 
 January 19, 2016 – Regular Meeting 
 February 16, 2016 – Regular Meeting 
 March 15, 2016 – Regular Meeting 
 April 19, 2016 – Regular Meeting 
 May 17, 2016 – Regular Meeting 
 June 21, 2016 – Regular Meeting 
 July 19, 2016 – Regular Meeting 
 August 9, 2016 – Committee of the Whole 
 August 23, 2016 – Regular Meeting 

 
12. All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in 

the financial statements. 
 

13. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial 
statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud. 

 



14. We have no knowledge of any fraud, or suspected fraud, that affects the Library and has not 
already been communicated to you and involves: 
 
a. Management, 

 
b. Employees who have significant roles in internal control, or 

 
c. Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

 
15. We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the Library’s 

financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, regulators, or others 
that has not already been communicated to you. 
 

16. We have no knowledge of instances of noncompliance, or suspected noncompliance, with 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, or grant agreements, or abuse, whose effects 
should be considered when preparing financial statements. 

 
17. We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation, claims, and assessments 

whose effects should be considered when preparing the financial statements. 
 

18. We have disclosed to you the identity of the Library’s related parties and all the related party 
relationships and transactions of which we are aware. 

 
Government - specific 
 
19. There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance 

with, or deficiencies in, financial reporting practices. 
 

20. We have identified to you any previous audits, attestation engagements, and other studies 
related to the audit objectives and whether related recommendations have been 
implemented. 

 
21. The Library has no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or 

classification of assets, liabilities, or equity. 
 

22. We are responsible for compliance with the laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts and 
grant agreements applicable to us, including tax or debt limits and debt contracts, and legal 
and contractual provisions for reporting specific activities in separate funds. 

 
23. We have identified and disclosed to you all instances that have occurred, or are likely to have 

occurred, of fraud and noncompliance with provisions of laws and regulations that we believe 
have a material effect on the financial statements or other financial data significant to the 
audit objectives, and any other instances that warrant the attention of those charged with 
governance. 

 
24. We have identified and disclosed to you all instances which have occurred, or are likely to 

have occurred, of noncompliance with provisions of contracts and grant agreements that we 
believe have a material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts or other 
financial data significant to the audit objectives. 

 
25. We have identified and disclosed to you all instances that have occurred, or are likely to have 

occurred, of abuse that could be quantitatively or qualitatively material to the financial 
statements or other financial data significant to the audit objectives. 

 
26. There are no violations or possible violations of budget ordinances, laws and regulations 

(including those pertaining to adopting, approving, and amending budgets), provisions of 



contracts and grant agreements, tax or debt limits, and any related debt covenants whose 
effects should be considered for disclosure in the financial statements, or as a basis for 
recording a loss contingency, or for reporting on noncompliance. 

 
27. As part of your audit, you prepared the financial statements and related notes.  We 

acknowledge our responsibility as it relates to those nonaudit services, including that we 
assume all management responsibilities, oversee the services by designating an individual, 
preferably within senior management, who possesses suitable skill, knowledge, or 
experience; evaluate the adequacy and results of the services performed; and accept 
responsibility for the results of the services.  We have reviewed, approved, and accepted 
responsibility for those financial statements and related notes.  We understand that you 
prepared the trial balance for use during the audit and that your preparation of the trial 
balance was limited to formatting information into a working trial balance based on 
management’s chart of accounts. 

 
28. The Library has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or encumbrances 

on such assets, nor has any asset been pledged as collateral. 
 

29. The Library has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that would have a 
material effect on the financial statements in the event of noncompliance. 

 
30. The financial statements properly classify all funds and activities in accordance with GASB 

Statement No. 34. 
 

31. All funds that meet the quantitative criteria in GASB Nos. 34 and 37 for presentation as major 
are identified and presented as such, and all other funds that are presented as major are 
particularly important to financial statement users. 

 
32. Components of net position (net investment in capital assets; restricted; and unrestricted) and 

components of fund balance (nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, and 
unassigned) are properly classified and, if applicable, approved. 

 
33. Investments, derivative instruments, and land and other real estate held by endowments are 

properly valued. 
 

34. Provisions for uncollectible receivables have been properly identified and recorded. 
 

35. Expenses have been appropriately classified in, or allocated to, functions and programs in 
the Statement of Activities, and allocations have been made on a reasonable basis. 

 
36. Revenues are appropriately classified in the Statement of Activities within program revenues, 

general revenues, contributions to term or permanent endowments, or contributions to 
permanent fund principal. 

 
37. Interfund, internal, and intra-entity activity and balances have been appropriately classified 

and reported. 
 

38. Deposits and investment securities and derivative instruments are properly classified as to 
risk and are properly disclosed. 

 
39. Capital assets are properly capitalized, reported, and, if applicable, depreciated. 

 
40. We are not aware of any current or anticipated losses in excess of our insurance coverage 

for which we would be financially liable. 
 

 



41 . We have appropriately disclosed the Library's policy regarding whether to first apply 
restricted or unrestricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both 
restricted and unrestricted net position is available, and have determined that net position is 
properly recognized under the policy. 

42. We are following our established accounting policy regarding which resources (that is , 
restricted , committed , assigned , or unassigned) are considered to be spent first for 
expenditures for which more than one resource classification is available. That policy 
determines the fund balance classifications for financial reporting purposes. 

43. We acknowledge our responsibility for the required supplementary information (RSI). The 
RSI is measured and presented within prescribed guidelines and the methods of 
measurement and presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period. We 
have disclosed to you any significant assumptions and interpretations underlying the 
measurement and presentation of the RSI. 

44. With respect to the supplemental financial information, we acknowledge our responsibility for 
presenting the supplemental financial information in accordance with U.S. GAAP, and we 
believe the supplemental financial information, including its form and content, is fairly 
presented in accordance with U.S. GAAP. The methods of measurement and presentation 
of the supplemental financial information have not changed from those used in the prior 
period, and we have disclosed to you any significant assumptions or interpretations 
underlying the measurement and presentation of the supplemental information. 

45. We agree with the findings of specialists in evaluating the Library's accrued pension liability 
and have adequately considered the qualifications of the specialists in determining the 
amounts and disclosures used in the financial statements and underlying accounting 
records . We did not give or cause any instructions to be given to specialists with respect to 
the values or amounts derived in an attempt to bias their work, and we are not otherwise 
aware of any matters that have had an impact on the independence or objectivity of the 
specialists . 

46. We believe that the actuarial assumptions and methods used to measure pension liabilities 
and costs for financial accounting purposes are appropriate in the circumstances. 

Signed ~~·~ 
Title: f...'j. .c c.u.11 '\K l) \ f t c:..f i.'"'-

Date: If - 3 - ...:< 0 /-t 

Signed: 

Title : 

Date: _li-"+~/_3_,_/_!G, ____ _ 


















































	10 Comptrollers 2015-16.pdf
	Comptroller Report


